Report to the Congress and the Secretary of Education

June 1994

FINANCIAL AUDIT

Federal Family Education Loan Program's Financial Statements for Fiscal Years 1993 and 1992



l . A.L. i ł

U.S. Department of Education Office of Inspector General Washington, D.C. 20202 À

ł

100

Į

1000

B-202873

Page 1

June 30, 1994

To the President of the Senate and the Speaker of the House of Representatives

In accordance with the Chief Financial Officers Act of 1990, GAO and the Department of Education's Office of the Inspector General audited the Principal Statements of the Department of Education's Federal Family Education Loan Program (FFELP) and its internal controls and compliance with laws and regulations for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1993. This report presents the results of this joint audit. It also describes Education's progress in developing better financial information and controls to more effectively manage the student loan program. Education fully cooperated with us and has begun significant efforts towards improving its financial information.

The significant matters this report discusses relate to determining program costs, effectively monitoring payments to guaranty agencies and lenders, and ensuring accurate financial reporting. We found that Education had material weaknesses in internal controls over each of these areas that could lead to material losses of assets or misstatements in the Principal Statements. These weaknesses undermine Education's ability to effectively and efficiently achieve the program's mission of providing loan access to all eligible students at a reasonable cost to taxpayers. Also, without adequate financial information, the Congress and Education's management cannot know the program's operating costs or the extent of Education's liability for loan defaults.

We are sending copies of this report to the Secretary of Education and other Department officials. We are also sending copies to the Secretary of the Treasury, the Director of the Office of Management and Budget, the Chairmen and Ranking Minority Members of the Senate Committee on Governmental Affairs and the House Committee on Government Operations, and other interested congressional committees. Copies will be made available to others upon request.

This report was prepared under the direction of John Hill, Director for Audit Support and Analysis, GAO's Accounting and Information Management Division, and Geraldine Jasper, Deputy Assistant Inspector General for Audit, Department of Education's Office of the Inspector General, who may be reached at (202) 512-8549 and (202) 205-8200, respectively, if you or your staff have any questions. Other major contributors are listed in appendix IV.

Charles A. Bouster

Charles A. Bowsher Comptroller General of the United States

Bihama J. ame 1

James B. Thomas, Jr. Inspector General Department of Education

GAO/AIMD-94-131 and ACN 17-30302 FFELP's FY 1993 Financial Audit

5

÷

Į.

Contents

Letter		1
Opinion Letter		6
· F	Summary of Results	6
	Mission and Operating Environment	8
	Significant Matters	12
	Unreliable Loan Data Continues to Prevent Reasonable Estimates of Costs	13
	Control Weaknesses Result in Billions of Unverified Payments	15
	Financial Reporting Internal Control Weaknesses Persist	20
	Other Matters	23
	CFO Organizational Structure	23
	Budget Formulation Concerns	24
	Other Program Cost Estimation Issues	26
	Federal Direct Student Loan Program	27
	Conclusions	28
	Recommendations	29
	Agency Comments and Our Evaluation	30
Financial Statements		
	Overview of the Reporting Entity	33
	Statements of Financial Position	42
	Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Position	43
	Statements of Cash Flows	44
	Statements of Budgetary Resources and Actual Expenses	46
	Notes to the Principal Financial Statements	47
Appendix I		66
Objectives, Scope, and Methodology		
Appendix II		68
Status of Fiscal Year 1992 Financial Audit		
Recommendations		

i

l

l

ļ

Contents

Appendix III Comments From the Department of Education		70
Appendix IV Major Contributors to This Report		72
Related GAO and OIG Reports		76
Table	Table 1: Transition Period for Federal Direct Student Loan Program	11
Figure	Figure 1: Federal Family Education Loan Program: A Complicated and Cumbersome Process	9

Abbreviations

CFO	Chief Financial Officer
FDSLP	Federal Direct Student Loan Program
FFELP	Federal Family Education Loan Program
GAO	General Accounting Office
NSLDS	National Student Loan Data System
OCFO	Office of the Chief Financial Officer
OIG	Office of the Inspector General
OMB	Office of Management and Budget
OPE	Office of Postsecondary Education

.

ł

distants in Property.

-

1.1

Į.

ł

B-202873

To the Secretary of Education

In accordance with the Chief Financial Officers (CFO) Act of 1990, the Department of Education prepared the accompanying Principal Statements for its Federal Family Education Loan Program (FFELP) for the fiscal years ended September 30, 1993 and 1992. Last year, GAO was unable to give an opinion on the fiscal year 1992 statements taken as a whole because reliable student loan data upon which to base the liabilities for loan guarantees was not available.¹ In addition, GAO reported that existing systems did not provide the necessary meaningful and reliable financial management information needed to effectively manage and report on the FFELP's operations. As a result of its audit for fiscal year 1992, GAO made 18 recommendations to Education; the status of Education's actions on these recommendations is disclosed in appendix II.

In response to GAO's audit reports covering fiscal year 1992, Education officials expressed their commitment to developing better financial management information and in establishing a sound internal control structure for the FFELP and the planned Federal Direct Student Loan Program. A number of corrective actions are underway, including the development of the National Student Loan Data System, the first national database of loan-by-loan information on over 40 million loans awarded to borrowers. In addition, Education is developing its first agencywide strategic management plan and has initiated efforts to design a system to identify key success measures for major programs and support services.

These initiatives ultimately should result in increased program accountability. However, we, as well as Education's management, recognize that the Department still faces major challenges in correcting systemic financial management problems. A sustained effort will be critical to sound financial management and reliable financial information becoming routine at Education.

Summary of Results

GAO and Education's Office of the Inspector General (OIG) jointly performed the fiscal year 1993 audit. Due to the limited amount of time between the fiscal years 1993 and 1992 audits and the severity of the long-standing financial management problems, many of the financial management problems identified during the prior year's audit still exist.

¹Financial Audit: Federal Family Education Loan Program's Financial Statements for Fiscal Year 1992 (GAO/AIMD-93-04, June 30, 1993). 1

1

For these reasons, our opinions on the fiscal year 1993 financial statements, internal controls, and compliance with laws and regulations are essentially the same as GAO's opinions covering fiscal year 1992. Our results are as follows.

ł

i.

į

i

ł

i

i

• We were unable to express an opinion on whether the fiscal year 1993 (1) Statement of Financial Position, (2) Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Position, and (3) Statement of Budgetary Resources and Actual Expenses were fairly stated because reliable student loan data was not available. The student loan data that was available was generally provided by the guaranty agencies and used by the Department in a model to calculate its costs to be incurred on outstanding guaranteed loans (referred to as liabilities for loan guarantees). The inaccuracies in the data were so pervasive that we could not perform sufficient procedures to conclude whether the FFELP's liabilities for loan guarantees of \$14 billion and other related line items were fairly stated as of September 30, 1993. These are the most significant amounts in the FFELP Principal Statements.

We determined, through detailed audit procedures, that the Statement of Cash Flows presents fairly the cash flows of the FFELP for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1993. However, the Statement of Cash Flows reports only the cash actually received and disbursed by the FFELP. Because of the material internal control weaknesses, detailed in GAO's March 1993 report² and current year findings summarized in the Significant Matters section of this report, we were unable to determine if Education received or disbursed the proper amounts.

 In our opinion, internal controls were not properly designed and implemented to effectively safeguard assets and assure that there were no material misstatements in the Principal Statements. However, they were effective in assuring material compliance with budget authority and with significant provisions of selected laws and regulations.

Ineffective internal controls and unreliable student loan data also affected the reliability of information contained in Education's annual budget submission and the Overview of the Reporting Entity. This information was generally derived from the same sources as the information presented in the Principal Statements. Consequently, the reliability of information presented in the budget and the Overview of the Reporting Entity cannot be reasonably determined.

²Financial Audit: Guaranteed Student Loan Program's Internal Controls and Structure Need Improvement (GAO/AFMD-93-20, March 16, 1993).

B-202873

	 Our tests for compliance with significant provisions of selected laws and regulations disclosed no material instances of noncompliance. The limited tests we conducted would not necessarily detect all material instances of noncompliance, however, nothing came to our attention in the course of our work to indicate that material noncompliance with such provisions occurred. Finally, nothing came to our attention to indicate that Education's report on internal controls prepared under the Federal Managers' Financial Integrity Act of 1982 conflicts materially with the results of our evaluation of the internal controls.
Mission and Operating Environment	FFELP's primary mission is to increase postsecondary education opportunities for eligible students who otherwise may not be able to further their education. It operates on the premise that once educated, the borrowers will earn income sufficient to repay their loans. Based on this premise, the program's net costs to taxpayers should be minimal. Education needs reliable information to effectively manage this program and to assess the program's performance in achieving its mission.
	Established in 1965, the FFELP, formerly known as the Guaranteed Student Loan Program, is the largest postsecondary education loan program of the federal government. At September 30, 1993, Education reported \$69 billion in outstanding loan guarantees of which it estimated that \$16 billion, net of cancellations, were originated in fiscal year 1993 alone. It also reported paying over \$3 billion in 1993 for interest subsidies and special allowances, ³ net of loan origination fees, on certain loans to lenders and loan defaults, net of collections, to guaranty agencies.
	The Department relies extensively on schools, lenders, and guaranty agencies in making resources available to eligible students and overseeing this program. It also functions through a complicated and cumbersome set of rules and requirements involving millions of students and thousands of schools, lenders, and other entities. As shown in figure 1, the maze of responsibilities for the delivery structure and processing sequence of a typical loan is complex.

l

į

10.00

£

Ì

-

-

-27.00

i

1

ł

ļ

,

³Special allowances are subsidies paid to lenders due to below market interest rates on guaranteed loans.





ł

Education reinsures loans made by lenders to eligible students or their parents in an effort to ensure the availability of private capital. Guaranty agencies reimburse lenders for loans that default and generally recover default payments from the Department. Education also pays an interest subsidy and special allowance to lenders on certain loans. In addition, schools are required to provide information to Education through guaranty agencies on the current status of students participating in the program. ł

ţ.

1

i.

As a result of this relationship, Education depends on the guaranty agencies and lenders for accurate data in order for it to assess and achieve its program mission. The program's success is directly affected by Education's relationship with and oversight of the 46 active guaranty agencies, approximately 8,000 lenders, and over 7,500 schools.

The federal government's risk of incurring substantial program costs has increased greatly as this program has expanded and evolved. The original plan was for a simple program involving unsubsidized loans that did not require testing for financial need and relied on states to guarantee the loans. This approach fell apart almost immediately because many states were reluctant to establish guaranty agencies. The program was replaced by the present system of interest subsidies, special allowances, and federal guarantees.

The FFELP has been on GAO's and the Office of Management and Budget's (OMB) list of high-risk programs since each agency began this designation in fiscal year 1990. This designation is primarily attributable to (1) the Department's long-standing financial and program management problems, (2) the statutory complexity of the program, and (3) the significant costs incurred by the federal government for loans that default. As of September 30, 1993, the Department has paid, on a cumulative basis from the inception of this program in 1965, default costs⁴ totaling \$21.5 billion and has guaranteed over \$145 billion, net of cancellations, in student loans.

As GAO reported in its fiscal year 1992 report on the FFELP's internal controls, the guaranty agencies' role in this program is essentially that of a fiscal intermediary for the Department. Education is required by law to rely on the guaranty agencies to carry out significant activities of the FFELP. However, its relationship with these guaranty agencies is not structured to give Education sufficient leverage to improve aspects of the program affected by guaranty agency operations. For example, almost all of the

⁴The amount of default claims paid does not include death, disability, or bankruptcy claims.

economic risk associated with guaranteeing student loans under the FFELP is borne by the federal government. At the same time, Education is restricted by law from directly guaranteeing loans made by lenders in a state or region where a guaranty agency is operating. Because of these conditions, traditional business incentives do not govern Education's relationship with guaranty agencies.

į

ł

ł

-

Some of the changes made to this program as part of the Higher Education Amendments of 1992 and the Student Loan Reform Act of 1993 may provide Education with additional leverage to manage this program. For example, the Secretary is explicitly authorized to terminate guaranty agency agreements if the Secretary determines that such action is necessary to protect the federal fiscal interest. Moreover, the Secretary is authorized to take certain actions to recover or preserve reserve funds, or assets purchased with reserve funds, held by guaranty agencies. Also, guaranty agencies may be subject to criminal penalties for violating directions of the Secretary in this area.

In addition, the Student Loan Reform Act of 1993 requires the phase in of the Federal Direct Student Loan Program starting in July 1994. Under this program, the Department will make loans directly to borrowers through their participating schools. As a result, Education officials believe that the Federal Direct Student Loan Program should decrease the number of guaranty agencies and lenders involved in the FFELP over the next 5 years. Also, Education expects the Federal Direct Student Loan Program to streamline the student aid process, reduce costs for students, and provide new repayment options which could reduce future defaults. The following table shows the phase-in plan for this new program.

Federal		
	Academic year	Percentage of new loan volume
	1994-1995	5
	1995-1996	40
	1996-1997	at least 50
	1997-1998	at least 50
	1998-1999	at least 60

Like the current program, sound financial management will be critical to the new direct student loan program for assessing performance and program costs. The strong internal controls that are central to good financial management will also help ensure that eligible students continue

Table 1: Transition Period for Feder

Direct Student Loan Program

	to have access to loans and that student and taxpayer interests are protected.
	The following section of this report identifies the material weaknesses that Education will need to rectify in order to strengthen financial management and discusses the impact of these weaknesses on the reliability of the information reported in the Principal Statements. Substantial improvements are necessary in each of these areas in order for Education to develop and maintain the necessary sound financial management structure needed to manage its activities.
Significant Matters	We found that the Department had material weaknesses in internal controls over (1) estimating costs to be incurred on outstanding guaranteed loans (referred to as liabilities for loan guarantees), (2) assuring that billing reports from guaranty agencies and lenders were accurate and that guaranty agencies and lenders reported all default collections and origination fees, respectively, owed to the Department, and (3) preparing accurate financial statements.
	During our audit, we noted that the Department continues to be unable to ensure that loan data on participants in the FFELP is accurate. As a result, estimates of liabilities for loan guarantees based on such data are unreliable as well. We continued to find that Education does not have systems or procedures in place to ensure that billions of dollars in payments made to guaranty agencies and lenders were reasonable. We also found that fundamental accounting procedures and system controls were not in place to ensure that financial statements and other management reports were correct. The Department has several corrective actions underway including the development of accounting systems and guaranty agency and lender audit guidelines that, if successful, should significantly improve its financial management.
	As a result of the Department's financial management problems related to the FFELP, (1) the cost to the taxpayers for administering the program cannot be accurately determined, (2) additional costs may be incurred as a result of unverified payments made to guaranty agencies and lenders, (3) management, the Congress, and other users of reported information are making financial and operating decisions based on unreliable information, and (4) the Department cannot effectively ensure that only loans to eligible students are guaranteed. These material weaknesses in internal controls continue to impede Education's ability to effectively

••••

i

1

ł

ţ,

•

!

į

.

Į.

ł

ļ

ł

	manage the FFELP. The Department expects that the National Student Loan Data System will help it address these problems.
Unreliable Loan Data Continues to Prevent Reasonable Estimates of Costs	As of September 30, 1993, the Department reported liabilities for loan guarantees of \$14 billion. In addition, \$2.6 billion for program costs was included in the fiscal year 1993 budget. It is essential that the Department have accurate student loan data in order to (1) estimate costs to be incurred on outstanding guaranteed loans, (2) manage loan defaults, and (3) assess its performance in ensuring that loans are available to eligible students.
	However, Education developed its estimate of loan guarantees and annual program costs using a model based on an analysis of historical loan data which was not reliable. Due to the number of entities involved in providing information used in developing these estimates and the range of errors we found, it was not practical to determine the potential magnitude of such errors and their effect on the FFELP's liabilities for loan guarantees as of September 30, 1993, or their effect on program costs submitted in the annual budget process. Because of the data integrity problems identified by both us and the Department, there is no way of knowing, at this time, the potential misstatement to the financial and budgetary cost estimates.
	The internal control weaknesses we identified were caused largely by the structure of this program, which sometimes limits Education's practical ability to require guaranty agencies to correct the student loan data errors that they have submitted. Some of the recent changes made to this program, as previously discussed, may provide the Department with additional leverage to manage this program.
	Examples of the specific student loan data inaccuracies we found are described below.
	 For 35 percent of the 662 borrowers we randomly tested and found on Education's annual tape extract⁵ of student loan data, guaranty agencies had inaccurately submitted information to the Department. For example, 229 of the 662 had incorrect amounts reported in the data field for "claims principal paid to lender." Twenty-two of these 229 cases had zero recorded in that data field, even though Education had paid a default claim. This data is a key factor in determining the costs of outstanding guaranteed

⁵Guaranty agencies submit annually to Education tape extracts or "dumps" of selected information. Education uses this data for a variety of analyses, including financial and budgetary estimates.

Ì

÷

.

1

THE OWNER

2

i

-

ł

1

з

Ì

loans. Some guaranty agency officials told us that Education's guidelines are vague as to what information should be submitted by the guaranty agencies. For instance, Education's guidance as to what should be submitted by guaranty agencies as "claims principal paid to lender" and "default outstanding" does not clearly differentiate as to what should be reported.

• The Department's tape extract reviews performed between March 1992 and January 1993 of 33 guaranty agencies identified similar problems with accuracy. As GAO noted in its audit of the fiscal year 1992 financial statements, Education found that the "date-entered-repayment" data field was incorrect for all 130 files it reviewed at one of the largest guaranty agencies. The Department also found discrepancies in the "date-entered-repayment" data field at 25 other guaranty agencies. In addition, discrepancies were found by Education in another key data field, "enrollment-status-code," at 27 of the 33 guaranty agencies reviewed.

Both of these data elements are important in developing loan subsidy estimates for financial reports. Education found that inaccuracies occurred because some guaranty agencies were not using current loan status data received from the lenders or schools and, instead, were recording estimates for certain data elements. Several of the guaranty agencies we visited stated that they are trying to correct the data errors. However, due to its time constraints, Education has not yet followed up on the status of corrective actions at each agency. Į

į.

Some of the data on the tape extract was clearly wrong, such as borrowers defaulting⁶ prior to the date that the loans were made and loans made prior to the initiation of this program in 1965. In addition, 13 of the 725 borrowers we tested at the guaranty agencies were missing from the tape extract. While the percentages of these errors were small, they further demonstrate the unreliability of this data.

In addition to the above problems, the tape extract used by the Department consists of data that is at least 6 to 9 months old and is only updated on an annual basis. Also, we found that guaranty agencies made little effort to verify the accuracy of tape extract information before it was submitted to Education. For fiscal year 1993, only 23 of the 46 guaranty agencies' tape submissions were accepted by Education when first submitted.

⁶The default date was determined by using the loan status date for all loans in default. The loan status date should be representative of the date in which the default (that is, last action) occurred.

	As a result of these problems, Education has worked more closely with the guaranty agencies in trying to understand and resolve some of the student loan data errors. In addition, the Department is continuing to develop the National Student Loan Data System. It plans to have this system updated weekly or monthly and use it to prevent borrowers who have defaulted on loans or reached maximum award levels from receiving additional loans. The Department currently expects to implement the first phase of the system in September 1994, at which time guaranty agencies' submission of tape extracts will no longer be required. The National Student Loan Data System is expected to be fully operational in May or June 1995.
	The Department reported in its Federal Managers' Financial Integrity Act Report for fiscal year 1993 that it expects to save \$300 million per year in inappropriate awards being made when this system is fully operational. However, Department officials informed us that some of these savings are already being realized through interim efforts to match student financial aid applicants to defaulters on the annual tape extract. A significant benefit of the National Student Loan Data System will be that more current default data would be available and that it would assist the Department in ensuring that loan limits are not exceeded.
	An important factor to the success of the National Student Loan Data System is how guaranty agencies implement systems to provide accurate and timely student loan data to Education. This information will be required at a time when the guaranty agencies' revenue base is declining and the Department is phasing in a direct lending program. Until the National Student Loan Data System is fully operational and the data reliable, decisionmakers—including the Congress—do not have the information necessary to make fully informed decisions about the program.
Control Weaknesses Result in Billions of Unverified Payments	During fiscal year 1993, the Department paid \$1.8 billion to 46 guaranty agencies for loan defaults net of collections and \$1.4 billion to approximately 8,000 lenders for interest subsidies and special allowances net of loan origination fees. In order to ensure that guaranty agencies and lenders are paid accurately for defaults, interest subsidies, and special allowances, the Department needs to know that billing reports from the guaranty agencies and lenders are accurate and valid.

ł

ļ

ł.

' |

į

ł

i .

	However, as reported by GAO in March 1993, ⁷ Education did not have systems or procedures in place to ensure that individual billing reports submitted by guaranty agencies and lenders were reasonable. In addition, GAO reported that Education and guaranty agencies' external audits were broad in scope and auditors were not required to, and therefore did not conduct, in-depth examinations of the accuracy and validity of guaranty agencies' and lenders' claims for defaulted loans, interest subsidies, and special allowances. As a result, these audits generally did not provide assurance to the Department as to the accuracy of claims submitted or to the adequacy of the guaranty agencies' and lenders' internal controls over such claims.
	During our fiscal year 1993 audit, we found that Education continued to pay claims without assurance that the moneys reported on the billing reports were accurate and valid. We found that it did not reasonably ensure that:
	 collections from defaulted loans that offset default payments to guaranty agencies were reported timely, loan origination fees that reduce interest subsidy and special allowance payments to lenders were reported, and default reimbursements, administrative cost allowances, interest subsidies, and special allowances paid to guaranty agencies and lenders totaling billions of dollars were proper.
	Highlights of these findings follow.
Default Collections	During fiscal years 1993 and 1992, guaranty agencies did not report, within the required reporting time ⁸ \$111 million and \$133 million, respectively, of offsetting cash collections. We found that on one or more monthly reports submitted during this 2-year period, about 30 of the 46 guaranty agencies reported cash collections totaling \$14 million to the Department at least 6 months after the guaranty agencies received the money. This resulted in payments to the guaranty agencies in amounts greater than should have been paid, since offsetting receipts should have been higher than those reported by the guaranty agencies. Several guaranty agencies attributed
	⁷ Financial Audit: Guaranteed Student Loan Program's Internal Controls and Structure Need Improvement (GAO/AFMD-93-20, March 16, 1993).
	⁸ Education required guaranty agencies to report its share of borrower payments on loan defaults

⁸Education required guaranty agencies to report its share of borrower payments on loan defaults within 60 days of receipt of funds from borrowers. In May 1993, Education notified guaranty agencies that starting July 1, 1993, it would assess interest on such payments not reported 45 days after receipt of funds.

10.000

.

י |

100

ł.

İ

Ì

Ì

i

ļ

ļ

į

	delayed reporting of collections to collection agents not submitting information to them on time. However, it is the responsibility of the guaranty agencies to ensure that necessary information be received so as to meet the Department's reporting requirement. Beginning with billing reports received in July 1993, the Department has assessed interest penalties on guaranty agencies for late reporting of collections.
	Of the 16 guaranty agencies we visited, 5 did not reconcile actual cash collections to that reported on their billing reports submitted to Education for reimbursement. In one instance, we found that actual cash collections did not agree with those reported on the billing report, which resulted in the Department paying about \$240,000 less than it should have. This error would have been found if reconciliations were performed on actual cash collections to cash collections reported on the billing report. While in this instance an underpayment occurred, this weakness clearly shows that the opportunity for overpayments to occur and go undetected exists.
Loan Origination Fees	Some lenders were not submitting billing reports to Education promptly, within 90 days after the end of the quarter, as instructed by Education. During fiscal year 1993, lenders were required to report to the Department loan origination fees of 5 percent on most FFELP loans. These origination fees are offset against interest subsidies and special allowances owed to the lenders by Education on the quarterly billing reports. Therefore, a lender may owe the Department money if origination fees are great enough. GAO and Education's OIG have each previously reported ⁹ that lenders were not submitting loan origination fees to Education promptly. We continued to find that delays were common. For example, 2,027 of the 10,962 lender billing reports received for the quarter ended September 30, 1993, were not submitted within a 90-day time frame, and 1,426 of these had not been submitted after 180 days.
	In addition, as GAO reported in its March 1993 report, the Department continues to be unable to determine whether origination fees are received from lenders when loans are sold. Lenders sometimes sell loans before paying the related origination fees, and Education's regulations provide that either the seller or the buyer can pay the fee. ¹⁰ Lender billing reports
	⁹ Stafford Student Loans: Prompt Payment of Origination Fees Could Reduce Costs (GAO/HRD-92-61, July 24, 1992). Proposed Procedure to Ensure Payment of Loan Origination Fees for Stafford Loans (OIG MIR No. 90-10).

 $^{10}\mbox{Education's regulations}$ also provide that the originating lender and any subsequent holder are jointly and severally liable for payment of the origination fee on the loan.

100

-

ą

ł

-

ĺ

ł

ł

1

F DALLARY

	do not contain detailed information on individual loans, and lenders are not required to inform the Department as to who is paying the fee for a particular loan. We found that total reported loans sold differed from total reported loans purchased for the first three quarters of fiscal year 1993, by amounts ranging from \$295 million to \$671 million, and that Education had not investigated or reconciled the differences because the system cannot track individual loan sales and purchases. As a result, it did not have the information needed to detect the nonpayment of origination fees when loans were sold.
	The Department is currently completing a pilot study to determine the magnitude of unreported origination fees due from lenders. This study is being performed in one region of the country. Preliminary results of this study found that small- to medium-size lenders continue to sell their loans quickly with no incentive to report the loan origination fees to Education. An Education official working on this study believes that these billing reports are not being submitted because the lenders might owe more in origination fees to the Department than the amount it is owed for interest subsidies and special allowances—a billing report would show that the lenders owed Education money.
	From this limited study, Education found that hundreds of thousands of dollars are potentially owed to the Department. In an effort to identify and collect origination fees from lenders who have not filed quarterly billing reports, the Department is planning to expand this effort nationwide. We believe that the Department may be losing significant amounts of loan origination fees owed by lenders.
	In addition, the Department has a quality improvement team reviewing ways to improve controls over the collection of loan origination fees. The team is analyzing the 1993 tape extract to identify lenders who originated loans in 1993 but failed to report origination fees to Education. The Department plans to give the lenders opportunities to confirm whether the fees have been paid. If a lender fails to respond, Education plans to notify the lender and guaranty agency that the Department has cancelled reinsurance on the loans in question. Education officials informed us that after establishment of the National Student Loan Data System, their ability to track individual loans on a more timely basis will greatly improve.
Interest Subsidies	The Department was paying interest subsidies on some loans that could

The Department was paying interest subsidies on some loans that could have been ineligible for this subsidy. On certain loans, Education is

1

responsible for paying interest subsidies to lenders as long as the student is in school and during authorized grace and deferment periods. Once a loan enters repayment status, the Department is no longer responsible for paying these interest subsidies. Federal regulations require that guaranty agencies establish procedures for monitoring the enrollment status of students participating in this program. Guaranty agencies must obtain enrollment status information from schools semiannually. They must report to the current holder of the loan, generally a lender, within 60 days any change in status that triggers the beginning of the borrower's grace period or the beginning or resumption of the borrower's immediate obligation to make scheduled payments.

We found that 43 of the 595 student loan accounts that we tested at selected lenders had inaccurate loan statuses based on information provided to us from schools. Twenty-six of the 43 had not been eligible for interest subsidies for more than 6 months according to information that we received from schools; however, the lenders had continued to bill Education for payment during this time. In one case, even though a student had left school in March 1992, interest subsidy payments were included on a March 1993 billing report to the Department. Prior to our identifying these cases, the lenders were unaware that some of these loans were ineligible for interest payments. We also found 9 cases in which interest subsidies were charged to Education, but the schools, identified to us by the lenders, had no record of the students' enrollment during that reporting period.

External Audits

Each of the 16 guaranty agencies we visited had their fiscal year 1992 and 1993 financial statements audited by external auditors. However, after speaking with the auditors and reviewing their working papers, we found that these efforts focused on broad objectives of determining whether financial statement balances were fairly and reasonably presented. While these audits appeared to have been performed in accordance with applicable standards, Education had not yet issued specific audit guidelines addressing the accuracy of billings for external audits of guaranty agencies. As such, the auditors conducted only limited tests of the accuracy of the billing reports of the guaranty agencies. For example, in testing the agencies' receivables from Education for loan defaults, the external auditors generally verified that the receivable balances were fairly presented based on the agencies' cash collections from Education. These audits did not test whether Education's payments to the guaranty agencies were reasonable. As a result, the Department continues to have little

	assurance that bills it pays are correct. This issue was discussed in more detail in GAO's March 1993 report.
	Recognizing the necessity for verifying the accuracy and validity of moneys paid to guaranty agencies and lenders and the impracticality of performing assurance procedures themselves, the Department is developing a guaranty agency audit guide and a lender audit guide that would require external auditors to determine whether claims for payments submitted to Education are reasonable. Without such a control, the federal government has increased risk of paying incorrect amounts for loan defaults, interest subsidies, and special allowances, losing revenue, and guaranteeing loans to ineligible students.
Financial Reporting Internal Control Weaknesses Persist	To ensure that reliable and meaningful information is developed for the Department's management and the Congress to use as a basis for making decisions, a number of basic internal controls need to be in place, such as reconciliations, which ensure that transactions posted to accounting records are properly supported and system change controls which ensure that unauthorized system changes cannot be made. Such controls are designed to ensure the integrity and accuracy of financial information decisionmakers rely on to manage the program.
	Although the Office of the Chief Financial Officer (OCFO) and the Office of Postsecondary Education (OPE) have made improvements in financial reporting for the FFELP, Education's financial reporting process ¹¹ continues to be inadequate. As a result, management cannot ensure that the financial statements and other management reports are reliable.
	Weaknesses identified during the fiscal year 1993 FFELP financial audit were similar to those identified during the audit for fiscal year 1992 and primarily resulted from
	 the general ledger being antiquated and inefficient, permanent subsidiary ledgers not established and maintained for FFELP activities, and

¹¹This financial reporting process includes analyzing, evaluating, summarizing, reconciling, adjusting, and reclassifying information so that it may be reported to management and/or outsiders. Accounting and information systems supporting the FFELP are an integral part of this process.

ì

.

:

Ì

٤.

ł

ł

The cost

ł

3

Education is redesigning its financial management system. This project is expected to result in an integrated financial management system and to be phased in over a 3-year period beginning in fiscal year 1995. If successful, this system should be instrumental in assisting the Department in addressing the financial reporting problems we found. Specifically, we found the following.

- Education's general ledger system was unable to directly produce the FFELP financial statements because it was outdated and was designed primarily for funds control. As a result, the Department's management had to develop alternative approaches, including the purchase of an additional software package and the use of contracted services, to create these statements and to enable it to prepare agencywide statements in the near future.
- As a result of GAO's recommendations reported in March 1993, the Department established interim subsidiary ledgers for the FFELP. However, these interim subsidiary ledgers did not include all activity affecting loan receivable balances because of their inability to record adjusting entries and were not considered by the Department to be permanent subsidiary ledgers. Therefore, reconciliations were not performed between the general ledger balances and the interim subsidiary ledger balances. The Department did, however, perform monthly reconciliations of general ledger activity and interim subsidiary ledger activity to activity reported in the FFELP information systems. Although these reconciliations should ensure that all activity recorded in the FFELP information systems were recorded in the general ledger and interim subsidiary ledgers, they do not ensure that loans receivable balances reported in the financial statements are complete and accurate.

The loans receivable balances represent default claims paid that have not been collected or written off. Education's accounting policy is to record this receivable net of amounts not expected to be collected as an offset to its liability for loan guarantees. In order for the Department to know what moneys are owed as well as whether all moneys owed are being collected and reported, it is critical that subsidiary ledgers be established, maintained, and reconciled to the general ledger. The Department is currently enhancing the subsidiary ledger process to enable the interim subsidiary ledgers to record adjusting entries. In addition, it has initiated a task order to develop permanent subsidiary ledgers which should be operational in fiscal year 1996. • At the time of our review, Education did not have effective general controls¹² over information systems to safeguard assets, maintain the confidentiality of student loan data, and ensure the reliability of financial management information. We found that (1) controls over access to data and computer programs were ineffective, (2) computer security administration needed strengthening, (3) system software change controls were inadequate, and (4) computer disaster recovery plan testing and evaluation procedures were insufficient.

To address these weaknesses, the Department and its contractor have taken corrective actions such as (1) reducing system software programmers' access to FFELP data by approximately one-third, (2) developing a system to monitor activities of personnel with broad-based or privileged access to FFELP data, and (3) enhancing the disaster recovery program. In addition, the Department is establishing formal policies and procedures for security administration functions and expects to complete this project by September 1994.

Likewise, the general controls over Education's general ledger system did not adequately restrict access to data files, computer programs, and system software. Security responsibility is spread out, with no one person having responsibility for the overall system. This has resulted in gaps in security oversight. For example, we found that (1) weaknesses identified in prior general ledger security reviews had not been corrected, (2) two of eight system administrators still had access to the system after they were no longer employed with the Department or by its contractor, (3) an audit trail on user activities was not properly maintained, and (4) passwords were not changed unless requested by the users. Based on our discussions with Education officials, no one had clear responsibility for oversight of overall system security. This responsibility would include oversight of system administrators, who, among other job functions, created and distributed user passwords. In addition, we found that staff assigned to manage this system had limited or no security training. Also, the disaster recovery plan had not been finalized or tested for the general ledger system. As a result of these weaknesses, unauthorized changes and access to data files, computer programs, and system software could occur within the general ledger system without detection.

ł

¹²General controls over accounting and information systems include reviewing changes to application and system software, system development design practices, segregation of duties, telecommunications, disaster recovery and contingency planning, and data security.

Other Matters	In addition to the material internal control weaknesses just discussed, other matters came to our attention during the audit that we felt should be highlighted within this report. These matters included concerns about (1) Chief Financial Officer (CFO) responsibilities, (2) budget formulation, (3) other program cost estimation issues, and (4) the Federal Direct Student Loan Program. We believe that each of these areas offers opportunities for the Department to significantly improve its internal controls and financial management of this program.		
CFO Organizational Structure	Education's current organizational structure could make it difficult for the CF0 to effectively perform certain responsibilities under the Chief Financial Officers Act of 1990. The CF0 Act and OMB's February 1991 implementing guidance to agencies on preparing CF0 organizational plans outline the agency CF0's authority and role in improving the agency's organizational structure and systems. Specifically, under the act and OMB's guidance, the agency CF0's responsibilities include, among other things, (1) overseeing all financial management activities relating to the programs and operations of the agency, (2) developing and maintaining an integrated agency accounting and financial management system, including financial reporting and internal controls, and (3) directing, managing, and providing policy guidance and oversight of the development of agency financial management budgets. Education's CF0 structure could limit the CF0's ability to carry out these responsibilities effectively because budget functions and program financial management and related systems are not direct responsibilities of the CF0.		
	Prior to August 1993, Education's CFO had responsibility for budget functions. At that time an organizational change occurred and the Secretary reported to OMB that the CFO should not be responsible for the budget functions because (1) the budget and evaluations functions are integral elements of the Department's process for formulating policy and should be closely coordinated under the responsibilities of the Under Secretary and (2) the CFO would have to focus more on budget matters than on important financial management matters and on integrating the Department's financial information systems. The Secretary informed GAO that the Department believes that the current organizational structure should ensure greater attention to financial management issues than under the old organization where these matters were often overshadowed by budget concerns.		

Contraction of the second

.

.

: 1

÷

The second se

ł

And a second
į

10.000

Concerned and

j

ı.

1000

.

-

.

	We are concerned, however, that the lack of these budget responsibilities for (1) budget functions and (2) program financial management and related systems that feed into the general ledger could make it difficult for the CFO to effectively support good financial management, including the development and maintenance of integrated accounting and financial management systems and the reporting of complete, reliable, consistent, and timely information.		
	In our view, the ideal situation would be that the CFO have direct input into an agency's annual budget process, the ability to review the validity of estimates made and the reliability of the assumptions used, and sign-off authority before formal budget submissions are made. A review of the CFO organization functions for the 23 agencies covered by the act shows that 20 CFOs are responsible for budget formulation and execution. Education is only 1 of 3 agencies covered by the act whose CFO does not have these responsibilities.		
	We believe it is important that the Department continue to monitor the effectiveness of its current structure to ensure that the objectives of the CFO Act are met. We also believe it is important that the Under Secretary and the Assistant Secretary for Postsecondary Education continue to work closely with the CFO in supporting good financial management and ensuring that the CFO is able to effectively perform certain responsibilities under the act.		
Budget Formulation Concerns	The estimate of FFELP's program costs continues to be a major budget formulation concern. As GAO reported in the fiscal year 1992 financial aud of FFELP, Education's estimates of FFELP's costs, which are incorporated in Education's annual budget submission, were derived using the same unreliable data and internal control deficiencies as its liabilities for loan guarantees. Because there is no evidence, as demonstrated from our fiscal year 1993 FFELP financial audit, that this condition has significantly improved, the accuracy of projected program costs continues to be questionable.		
	For example, Education estimated that for certain types of loans guaranteed in fiscal year 1993, it would pay an interest subsidy in that year for 89 percent of borrowers receiving subsidized loans. However, upon subsequent analyses and discussion with the Congressional Budget Office, Education determined that in fiscal year 1993 it would most likely pay an interest subsidy for 98 percent of those borrowers. Primarily, as a result of		

Linial

Į

ŗ

Ì

No.

ŧ

-

this change, Education's estimate for the cost of loans guaranteed in fiscal year 1993 was increased by \$476 million. For fiscal years 1994 and 1995, Education's model was adjusted to reflect more realistic percentages of students for which interest subsidies would be made.

ī.

ł

A DOUGH

i.

à

ALLOW.

-

In addition, Education continued to use some assumptions in its model for estimating program costs which were more optimistic than historical data adjusted for program changes would support. Specifically, we found that assumptions were overly optimistic related to (1) the percentage of loans estimated to default in the future and (2) future interest rates.

First, Education assumed a lower than adjusted historical default rate. It used 15 percent as a projected default rate while, based on adjusted historical data, we believe that 20 percent should have been used. As reported in GAO's fiscal year 1992 financial audit of FFELP, Education continued to base its assumed lower default rate on legislation and program initiatives designed to reduce defaults. Although such legislation and program initiatives should result in lower default rates, we found no basis to support the level of change that Education had projected (a 25 percent reduction in defaults as compared to adjusted historical data).

Recognizing that the underlying data itself is questionable, we recalculated the FFELP projected loan defaults using what we believe to be a more realistic rate. Our rate was developed by reviewing the program's historical trends at Education and guaranty agencies. We also made adjustments for anticipated improvements due to the legislation referred to earlier. These adjustments were significantly less than Education's because the default reduction tool, which eliminates schools with high default rates, has not yet proven to have as significant of an effect on default rates as Education had projected. In addition, we believe that other recent legislation, including allowing more students to receive loans and increasing loan limits, could result in increased defaults in the future.

Considering our recalculated default rate, Education's estimate of the cost to taxpayers for loans guaranteed in fiscal years 1994 and 1995 could be understated by as much as \$800 million. Education expects to guarantee about \$18.2 and \$15.2 billion in loans in fiscal years 1994 and 1995, respectively. The President's budget included estimated costs¹³ of \$2.3 billion and \$1.8 billion for new loan guarantees in those respective years. Using what we believe to be a more realistic default rate, but the

¹³In accordance with the Federal Credit Reform Act of 1990, the cost included in the budget represents the net present value of expected future cash flows.

same underlying data used by Education, the cost to taxpayers for these
loans could be as high as \$2.6 billion and \$2.3 billion for fiscal years 1994
and 1995, respectively.

Secondly, Education's model was also optimistic as to projected interest rates. Education estimated, based on 6-year interest rate projections provided by OMB, that no special allowance would have to be paid over the next 16 years for loans guaranteed in fiscal years 1993 through 1995. Its budget estimates relating to such loans could be significantly understated. We question Education's assumption regarding special allowances due to the inherent uncertainty associated with interest rates over such a long period of time.

Education's continued use of these optimistic assumptions could affect the usefulness of its program cost estimates to those making program decisions as well as require substantial use in future years of the permanent indefinite budget authority provided for reestimates under the Federal Credit Reform Act of 1990.¹⁴ The Department has initiated efforts to have a contractor review some of its loan model assumptions. It plans to make any needed changes to its assumptions based on the results of this review, which is expected to be completed during the summer of 1994.

It is very important to note that because budgeted program costs were derived using the same unreliable data and internal control deficiencies as Education's liabilities for loan guarantees, there is simply no way of knowing at this time the full range of error for the potential misstatement of Education's budget estimates for loans guaranteed in fiscal years 1993 through 1995.

Other Program Cost Estimation Issues

In fiscal year 1993, Education was unable to follow OMB's guidance to estimate and reestimate program costs because three of the largest guaranty agencies did not provide necessary loan data. OMB Circular A-11 contains what OMB characterizes as instructions and guidance for agency use in estimating and reestimating credit program costs under the Federal Credit Reform Act of 1990. Using these instructions, agencies would have to categorize each outstanding loan guarantee and separately estimate, or reestimate, the costs of loan guarantees in each category. Since Education determined that collecting data on an individual loan level would have been extremely burdensome to its program participants, OMB agreed that

¹⁴The Federal Credit Reform Act of 1990 changed the budget treatment of loans and loan guarantees made on or after October 1, 1991, to more accurately reflect the cost to the government.

	Education could estimate and reestimate costs of loan guarantees using a random sample of guaranteed loans in the FFELP portfolio.
	However, 3 of the largest guaranty agencies, from which Education had planned to obtain more than half of the sample records, did not provide these records to Education. Further, as a result of the relationship between Education and the guaranty agencies discussed earlier, Education's subsequent attempts to obtain the sample records from these guaranty agencies were unsuccessful. Accordingly, Education was unable to estimate and reestimate program costs in the manner agreed to by OMB. Instead, Education relied on the tape extract data, which as discussed earlier was highly questionable, to develop estimates and reestimates of program costs as it had in the past.
	As previously mentioned, the Department is dependent on the guaranty agencies to provide timely and accurate loan information. However, as evidenced by the Department's experience relating to loan estimates and reestimates, its practical ability to require that accurate and timely data be submitted is limited.
Federal Direct Student Loan Program	The Federal Direct Student Loan Program (FDSLP) is expected to save taxpayers billions of dollars and substantially improve the student loan process. The successful implementation of this program will be critical to ensuring continued loan access to eligible students as the FFELP is phased down over the next 5 years.
	Education expects the FDSLP to streamline the student aid process, reduce costs for students, and provide new repayment options which could reduce future defaults. Education also expects to save taxpayers an estimated \$4.3 billion primarily by (1) the reduction of interest subsidies to lenders, (2) the reduction in payments to guaranty agencies and lenders participating in the FFELP as the FDSLP is phased in over the next 5 years, and (3) new savings introduced to the FFELP through additional fees. The Department believes that part of these substantial savings will be used to reduce interest rates for student borrowers when the program is fully implemented.
	Since August 1993, Education has made progress in implementing the FDSLP. For example, the Department reported that it selected participating schools for the 1994-1995 academic year 6 weeks ahead of its schedule,

ţ

÷

j

STREET, DOGUST

ŝ

;

į

ļ

published regulations on time, and awarded the contract for origination and servicing of direct loans on schedule.

As the program gets underway, Education officials believe that the future loan volume and current profit margins of guaranty agency businesses will be reduced, causing some of the current 46 active guaranty agencies to withdraw from the FFELP. In an effort to ensure continued loan access under the FFELP and a smooth transition to direct lending, Education contracted with a private nonprofit agency, Transition Guaranty Agency, to perform, as a last resort, guaranty agency functions of servicing outstanding loan portfolios and providing new guarantees. In addition, Education has negotiated an agreement with the Student Loan Marketing Association (Sallie Mae) to assume responsibilities as a "lender of last resort."¹⁵ With these agreements in place, the Secretary believes that every eligible student can continue to have access to loans.

Education is under pressure to meet tight statutory deadlines for implementing the program and gaining needed school participation and support. In addition, loan volume is supposed to increase by 700 percent in the second year of operation (from 5 percent of the Department's current loan volume to 40 percent in the second year) and increase further still in future years (see table 1). As a result, we believe the Department faces a significant challenge of ensuring that these pressures do not prevent it from implementing the necessary internal controls as the FDSLP is phased in and the FFELP is phased down.

÷

Ŷ

Conclusions

The Department of Education faces many challenges in addressing its long-standing financial management problems, most important of which is correcting the numerous data integrity problems underlying the financial management systems. The problems we identified are not ones that lend themselves to "quick fixes" but rather require comprehensive efforts to correct root causes.

In addition to these challenges, there is a continuing need to deal with federal budgetary pressures and the call for government to reinvent itself by managing better with fewer resources. To accomplish this, the Congress, as well as Education's managers, need financial management information that is meaningful and accurate in order to make sound decisions. The need to correct long-standing problems in financial

¹⁵An entity required to make loans to eligible students who were unable, after conscientious efforts, to obtain funds from other entities. Guaranty agencies are also "lenders of last resort."

	operations becomes even more critical as Education starts lending directly to students under the Federal Direct Student Loan Program. Otherwise, the same problems that are affecting Education's guaranteed loan program could also pervade the new direct loan program.
Recommendations	A summary of the status of GAO's recommendations from the audit of FFELP's fiscal year 1992 financial statements is included in appendix II. While Education made progress during fiscal year 1993 in addressing many of these recommendations, few of these efforts have been completed due to the limited time since the prior year's audit and the severity of the financial management problems. Education expects that several of these recommendations will be addressed through its implementation of the National Student Loan Data System (NSLDS) and the Federal Direct Student Loan Program. We believe that if the improvement efforts are successful they could significantly improve accountability in the FFELP.
	We reaffirm all of GAO's previous recommendations included in appendix II that have not yet been completed by the Department. We especially emphasize the need for the Department to continue its efforts to (1) require guaranty agencies to correct data needed as input into the NSLDS, (2) require guaranty agencies and lenders to have external auditors perform procedures to determine whether claims for payments submitted to Education are reasonable, (3) test billing reports as part of the guaranty agencies and lenders internal reviews, (4) develop and maintain subsidiary ledgers for the FFELP, and (5) develop procedures to ensure that the general ledger maintained by OCFO is periodically reconciled to subsidiary ledgers maintained by OPE.
	In addition, we continue to suggest that the Congress consider amending the Higher Education Act to require that originating lenders pay loan origination fees even if the loan is subsequently sold to another lender.
	As a result of our audit of FFELP's fiscal year 1993 financial statements, we recommend that the Secretary of Education direct the Assistant Secretary for Postsecondary Education to perform periodic analyses to determine whether lenders are submitting billing reports promptly, within 90 days after the end of the quarter, as instructed by Education. These analyses should include follow-up procedures with individual lenders not submitting billing reports promptly.

-

Ì

:

-

÷

į

	We also recommend that the Secretary of Education direct the Assistant Secretary for Human Resources and Administration to clearly identify security responsibilities and oversight for Education's general ledger system, including establishing a security officer responsible for the overall security of this system. The security officer's responsibilities should include
	 developing and completing action plans to respond to previously reported security weaknesses, properly maintaining and reviewing an audit trail of user activities, ensuring that former contractors and terminated employees are denied access to the system, changing passwords periodically (possibly monthly or quarterly), and finalizing and testing a disaster recovery plan for the general ledger system. In addition, the Assistant Secretary for Human Resources and Administration should require and ensure that security administrators and supporting technical staff, who are responsible for the general ledger system, have security training.
Agency Comments and Our Evaluation	The Department provided comments on a draft of this report, which are reprinted in appendix III. In general, it agreed with our recommendations and plans to determine the best way to proceed to achieve the desired results. With respect to the section of the report that highlights concerns about the CFO organizational structure, however, the Department believes that the current CFO structure enables it to meet all the CFO Act's responsibilities. As stated in this report, we continue to believe that it is important that the Department continue to monitor the effectiveness of its current structure to ensure that the objectives of the CFO Act are met.

i

I

In closing, we would like to commend the Department for its second-year effort to develop financial statements. We believe that, although many challenges still remain, the Department's progress to date represents its commitment toward the CFO Act's ultimate goal of improving financial management throughout the federal government.

ŝ.

Charles A. Bouster

Charles A. Bowsher Comptroller General of the United States

Thomas A

James B. Thomas, Jr. Inspector General Department of Education

May 20, 1994

. .

.

Page 32

:

0.0751.024

Country

-

ł

į

i I

.

. .

Financial Statements

Overview of the Reporting Entity

OVERVIEW OF REPORTING ENTITY

I. BACKGROUND AND MISSION STATEMENT OF THE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION'S FEDERAL FAMILY EDUCATION LOAN PROGRAM

The Federal Family Education Loan (FFEL) Program, formerly called the Guaranteed Student Loan Program (GSLP) is the largest provider of financial aid among the Student Financial Assistance Programs administered within the U.S. Department of Education. The table below shows trends in Title IV aid over a 15-year period. In order to control for the effects of inflation, all comparisons are made using constant 1991 dollars.

TITLE IV AID AWARDED TO POSTSECONDARY STUDENTS IN CONSTANT 1991 DOLLARS (IN MILLIONS) SELECTED YEARS

Title IV Programs -- Constant 1991 Dollars(millions)

Academic Years	FFELP	Pell	Perkins	CWS	SEOG	SSIG	Total
1976-77	\$ 3,076	<u>\$ 3,421</u>	\$ 1,299	\$ 1,012	\$ 566	\$ 101	\$ 9,475
1981-82	10,452	3,329	840	903	523	113	16,160
1986-87	11,151	4,216	935	771	489	89	17,651
1991-92	<u>13,791</u>	5,708	855	771	578	62	21.765

FFELP =	Federal Family Education Loan Program
	(formerly Guaranteed Student Loan Program)
Pell =	Pell Grant Program
Perkins =	Perkins Loan Program
CWS =	College Work Study
SEOG =	Pell Grant Program Perkins Loan Program College Work Study Supplemental Education Opportunity Grant
SSIG =	State Student Incentive Grant

- Source: All data prior to 1991–92 were obtained from The College Board, <u>Trends in Student Aid: 1982</u> to 1992 September 1992, pp 5,13. Data for 1991–92 were obtained from U.S. Department of Education data files.
- Note: The Consumer Price Index for all urban dwellers (CPI-U) was used to adjust for inflation. Aid is reported by the academic year in which it was awarded. FFEL Program dollar volume represents loan commitments rather than actual amounts loaned. SSIG figures include only the federal portion.

1

ŗ

ž

This program, which operates through state and private nonprofit guaranty agencies, makes low-interest, long-term loans available to students attending participating postsecondary schools. Generally, these loans are made by commercial lenders, but some guaranty agencies and schools also participate as lenders in the program. Over \$140 billion in loans have been guaranteed as of September 30, 1992 (See Figure 1). Further, we estimate that the outstanding balance of guaranteed loans was \$69 billion at September 30, 1993.

The FFEL Program is comprised of the following five loan programs, 1) Federal Stafford Loans, 2) Unsubsidized Federal Stafford Loans, 3) Federal Supplemental Loans for Students (SLS), 4) Federal Parent Loans for Undergraduate Students (PLUS), and 5) Federal Consolidated Loans. These components are generally considered to be separate program entities because each has its own participants, loan limits and loan volume. However, students may participate in more than one program.

The FFEL Program has undergone several changes in the 28 years since its inception in 1965. Some of the most significant changes included requiring all loan applicants to demonstrate need in order to qualify for a federally subsidized loan (formerly only those with adjusted gross family incomes of \$30,000 a year or higher were subject to need analysis), increasing annual and aggregate loan limits for all borrowers, providing for unsubsidized Stafford loans for borrowers who do not qualify for federal interest subsidies under the Stafford program, and implementation of the Federal Direct Student Loan Program.

Mission and Goals

The FFEL Program was designed to increase postsecondary education opportunities for eligible students who otherwise may not have been able to further their education. The program operates on the premise that once educated, the borrowers earn income sufficient to repay their loans. In 1991 and 1992 respectively, the program generated about 4.8 million and 5.1 million new loans, totaling over \$13.5 billion and \$14.7 billion for students attending over 7,500 schools. These loans were provided by approximately 8,000 lenders and administered by 46 state or private nonprofit guaranty agencies participating in the program. The structure of the FFEL Program is dependent on guaranty agencies in helping to meet the mission of the program. As can be seen in figure 2, about 90 percent of the guaranty agencies' revenues are received from the Federal Government.

The FFEL Program supports two key Departmental priorities, which are: 1) to ensure access to a high quality postsecondary education and lifelong learning, and 2) to transform the Department into a high performance organization.

The two key FFEL Program goals supporting these practices are: 1) continuing to administer the programs with integrity, equity and efficiency while continuously improving the quality of service through reinvention strategies identified in the strategic plan; and 2) fostering and promoting an organizational culture supportive of responsive public service, diversity, innovation and continuous improvement. ÷
O This section highlights key features Program Financial Statements for th ended September 30, 1993.	
NET OPERATING ACTIVITY <u>1992</u> (\$3,913M) (\$3	O The net operating activity improvement reflects increased interest earned on funds deposited with U.S. Treasury and a decrease in the provision for loan defaults and other program expenses.
NET POSITION <u>1992</u> (\$12,785M) (\$	O The appropriations received for future outlays were sufficiently greater than the appropriations and subsidies returned and net operating activity to cause the movement in the net position.
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIONS <u>1992</u> (\$3,567M) (\$	O Increased interest income and decreased program expenses are the main factors affecting this indicator. 3,359M)
TOTAL ASSETS <u>1992</u> \$4,080M \$:	O The increase in the fund balance with U. S. Treasury accounts for the increase in total asscts. 5,338M
TOTAL LIABILITIES <u>1992</u> \$16,865M \$	O The improvement in total liabilities is a result of the decrease in the due to U. S. <u>1993</u> 15,696M

1

ŝ

•

.

:

:

ince the program's inception	illion in fiscal year 19	nade annually ha 193: the cumulat	tive loan volume
eriod. Figure 3 documents the c	change in loan volume for	the FFEL Program	n.
Students attending proprietary As seen on the table below proprietary institutions during elation to approximately 5 perce	v, approximately 20 pe the 1989-90 school y	ercent of the s year received a	tudents attending
STAFFORD LOANS AN	NDERGRADUATE S ND PELL GRANTS B DED 1989–90 ACADE	Y TYPE OF INS	
Type of Institution	Total Undergraduate Students	Total Stafford Loans	Percentage
Public Four Year	5,260,484	326,150	<u></u> 6%
Private Four Year	2,297,912	335,495	15%
Public 2 Year	7,052,280	98,732	1%
Private 2 Year	<u>269,140</u> 14,879,816	<u>23,146</u> 783,523	<u> </u>
Proprietary	1,391,453	274,116	20%
All Institutions	<u>16,271,269</u>	<u>1, 057,639</u>	7%
Office of Educati Notes: Figures include <u>all</u> not just these who	I Postsecondary Student Aid Study (Ni onal Research and Improvement, Nati students who attended during the 12- comprised the official annual enrollm	onal Center of Education S month period of the 1989- ent count taken during the	tatintics. 90 <u>academic year</u> . fall term.
While the FFEL Program has education for millions of studen increased significantly during the fhe factors responsible for the FFEL Program loan volume population, especially the incr- intending proprietary schools h of postsecondary institutions.	its, its costs and risks 1980's and have decrease increase in defaulted and 2) the changing ease in loans to propri ave a higher default rat	have also increased slightly in the particular sector of the particular	ed. Loan default st two years. at increase in the of the program dents. Borrower ending other type

î

Ę

÷

į.

: : :

Ę

i

i

ļ

2.4

Accountability Problems

The Department's Office of Inspector General, the Office of Management and Budget, and GAO reports have documented accountability problems that have contributed to defaults, fraud and mismanagement. One of the most significant problems is that the Department's student loan information systems contain data that are not always useful, timely, or accurate, thereby limiting their use for compliance and evaluation purposes. The Congress and the Department, recognizing the need to strengthen program integrity, have made substantial changes to fix the existing program. For example, on August 10, 1993 the Student Loan Reform Act of 1993 was passed, establishing the Federal Direct Student Loan Program. In addition, the Department is currently developing the National Student Loan Data System, which will provide the Department, for the first time ever, with a centralized database containing detailed information on the universe of student loan borrowers. The system will provide on-line access to the data on a loan-by-loan basis. As a result, the Department should be better able to manage the program by ensuring that (1) loan limits are not exceeded and (2) that students who have previously defaulted are not still receiving loans.

To strengthen the student financial aid "gatekeeping process," we have consolidated our internal responsibility for accreditation, eligibility, and certification functions that determine which schools can participate in these programs. In addition, as a result of the Secretary's efforts to obtain congressional funding approval, we are now implementing the new state postsecondary review program which will increase states' roles in the review and certification of postsecondary institutions.

IV. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Education's Office of Postsecondary Education, prepares the <u>Guaranteed Student Loan</u> <u>Programs Data Book</u> annually. This publication, most recently published in draft form in fiscal year 1992, is a compilation of statistical data, tables and charts for all components of the FFEL Program since its inception in 1965. It is forwarded to Congress, the guaranty agencies, and other interested parties upon request.

Fiscal year 1993 was the second year that the FFEL Program financial statements were issued and audited in accordance with the Chief Financial Officers Act of 1990, and related Office of Management and Budget guidance. Financial data for periods prior to fiscal year 1992, and all statistical data included in this reporting entity overview is unaudited and based solely on the books and records of the Department of Education.

Education has a major initiative underway to develop meaningful performance measures for all programs. The effort is spearheaded by the Monitoring and Performance Measures Team (MPMT), established by the Deputy Secretary. This team consists of executives and managers appointed by appropriate senior officers. The MPMT has initiated a pilot effort with the National Academy of Public Administration (NAPA) in which performance measures are being developed for five specific programs. These will include measures of inputs, outputs, efficiency, effectiveness, and outcomes. NAPA will also produce a handbook to guide performance indicator development for other Education programs. 1

i

This effort, which has been designed to produce measures that will have relevance and be useful for planning, managing and controlling Departmental programs, will require several years to complete. In the meantime, the performance indicators presented in this report were derived from existing information, primarily the data book previously discussed and the September 30, 1993, guaranty agency quarterly reports (Education Form 1130), to provide a preliminary view of the FFEL Program's performance.	
DIRECT STUDENT LOAN PROGRAM	
The proposal to phase in a Direct Student Loan Program is at the forefront of initiatives in postsecondary education. It will streamline the process and reduce costs for students; it will provide them new repayment options, including fixed, graduated, extended, and income-contingent plans; and it will save the taxpayers an estimated \$4.3 billion primarily by (1) the reduction of interest subsidies to lenders, (2) the reduction in payments to guaranty agencies and lenders participating in the FFELP as the FDSLP is phased in over the next 5 years, and (3) new savings introduced to the FFELP through additional fees.	
The Department has already taken many steps to implement the Direct Loan Program on a timely basis. All implementation activities are on schedule, including the publication of regulations, the selection of the first 104 schools, and the awarding of support contracts.	

:

1

į.

environmental

. .

ł

TODAT NAME

.

Ì

l

Ę





į



Statements of Financial Position

As of September 30, 199 (Dollars in Thous		
	,	
ASSETS	1993	1992
Financial Resources:		
Fund Balances with U.S. Treasury	\$ 5,298,276	\$ 4,023,651
Advances to Guaranty Agencies, Net	39,767	40,803
Accounts Receivable, Net	0	15,541
Total Assets	\$ 5,338,043	\$ 4, 079,995
LIABILITIES		
Liabilities Covered by Budgetary Resources:		
Liabilities for Loan Guarantees, Short-Term	\$ 2,062,863	\$ 1,430,743
Liabilities for Loan Guarantees, Long-Term	3,233,032	1,549,846
Due to U.S. Treasury	0	1,057,960
Accrued Salaries	2,381	643
Total Liabilities Covered by Budgetary Resources	\$ 5,298,276	\$ 4,039,192
Liabilities not Covered by Budgetary Resources:		
Liabilities for Loan Guarantees, Short-Term	3,209,929	2,996,631
Liabilities for Loan Guarantees, Long-Term	5,127,419	7,737,388
Borrowing from U.S. Treasury	2,058,407	2,090,103
Accrued Compensated Leave	1,897	1,819
Total Liabilities not Covered by Budgetary Resources	10,397,652	12,825,941
Total Liabilities	15,695,928	16,865,133
NET POSITION		
Invested Capital	39,767	40,803
Future Funding Requirements	(10,397,652)	(12,825,941
Total Net Position	(10,357,885)	(12,785,138
Total Liabilities and Net Position	\$ 5,338,043	\$ 4,079,995

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-

÷.

ţ

Annual I

a konsus

COMPANY NO.

н. т. . С. .

ļ

-

100

1

-

I

Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Position

For Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 1993 and 1992 (Dollars in Thousands)

PROGRAM NEVERULES AND EXPENSES Program Revenues Estimated Collections under Special Legislation faterest Earned on Funds Deposited with U.S. Treasury 172,017 30,536 Total Program Revenues 172,017 2,151,175 Program Expenses Provision for Loan Defaults, Net 1,091,577 2,048,235 Provision for Interest Rate Subsidies, Net 1,091,577 2,048,235 Provision for Interest Rate Subsidies, Net 1,091,577 2,048,235 Provision for Interest Rate Subsidies, Net 1,091,577 2,048,235 Total Program Revenues 37,755 15,732 Contractual Services 37,755 15,732 Contractual Services 32,4522 30,536 Rent, Communications, and Utilities 31,984 3,761 Salaries and Benefits Compensated Leave Expenses 78 55 Administrative Services 296 1,356 Equipment, Materials, and Supplies 329 776 Total Program Expenses 3,469,081 3,943,933 Net Operating Activity Before Extraordinary Item (3,296,264) \$(1,792,758) Extraordinary Item: Transfer to Treasury 0 (2,120,639) Net Operating Activity \$(12,785,138) (15,19,826) 0 Net Position, Beginning Balance, as Previously Stated 30 (12,785,138) (14,519,826) 0 Net Position, Beginning Balance, as (12,785,138) (15,19,826) 0 Net Position, Beginning Balance, as Previously Stated (12,785,138) (15,19,826) 0 Net Operating Activity (3,236,264) (12,785,138) (15,19,826) 0 Net Operating Activity (3,236,264) (12,785,138) (15,19,826) 0 Net Operating Activity (3,236,264) (12,785,138) (14,519,826) 0 Net Operating Activity (3,236,264) (12,785,138) (15,19,826) 0 Net Operating Activity (3,236,264) (12,785,138) (14,556,268) 0 Net Operating Activity (3,236,264) (12,785,138) (14,556,258) 0 Net Operating Activity (3,235,264) (12,785,138) (14,556,268) 0 Net Operating Activity (3,235,264) (12,785,138) (14,556,268) (12,785,138) (15,19,826) 0 Net		1993	1992
Estimated Collections under Special Legislation \$ 0 \$ 2,120,639 Interest Earned on Funds Deposited with U.S. Treasury 172,017 30,536 Total Program Revenues 172,017 2,151,175 Program Expenses 172,017 2,048,235 Provision for Loan Defaults, Net 1,091,577 2,048,235 Provision for Loan Defaults, Net 1,091,577 2,048,235 Provision for Interest Rate Subsidies, Net 1,143,563 1,588,182 Mandatory Administrative Expenses 0822,882 190,777 Contractual Services 37,755 15,732 Interest Expense 324,522 30,536 Rent, Communications, and Utilities 1,984 3,7661 Salaries and Benefits 2,986 42,766 Equipment, Materials, and Supplies 13,986 422,78 Total Program Expenses 426 644 Other Expenses, Net 13,886 42,278 Total Program Expenses 3,469,081 3,943,933 Net Operating Activity Before Extraordinary Item (3,296,264) (1,792,758) Extraordinary Item: Transfer to Treasury 0 (2,120,639) Net Position, Beginning Balance, as Previously Stated 4(12,785,138) \$(16,209,786) Adjustments 0 (12,785,138) (15,151,826) Adjustments 0 (12,785,138) (15,151,826) Adjustments 0 (12,785,138) (15,151,826) Adjustments 0 (12,785,138) (15,151,826) Adjustments 0 (12,785,138) (15,151,826) Subsidy Reestimate 0 (12,764) (1,792,754) Subsidy Reestimate 0 (12,964) (12,964) 0 Subsidy Reestimate 0 (12,964) (13,913,397)	PROGRAM REVENUES AND EXPENSES		
Interest Earned on Funds Deposited with U.S. Treasury 172,617 30,536 Total Program Revenues 172,817 2,151,175 Program Expenses 1,091,577 2,048,235 Provision for Loan Defaults, Net 1,091,577 2,048,235 Provision for Loan Defaults, Net 1,143,563 1,588,182 Provision for Interest Rate Subsidies, Net 1,143,563 1,588,182 Provision for Loan Defaults, Net 1,091,577 2,048,235 Provision for Loan Defaults, Net 1,143,563 1,588,182 Provision for Loan Defaults, Net 1,091,577 2,048,235 Provision for Loan Defaults, Net 1,235,252 30,536 Interest Expense 324,522 30,536 Compensated Leave Expense 78 55 Administrative Services 296 1,356 Equipment, Matariale, and Supplies 329 776 Intersegency Agreements 426 644 Other Expenses, Net 13,866 42,278 Total Program Expenses 3,469,081 3,943,933 Net Operating Activity Before Extraordinary Item	Program Revenues		
Total Program Revenues172,0172,151,175Program Expenses172,0172,048,235Provision for Loan Defaults, Nat1,091,5772,048,235Provision for Interest Rate Subsidies, Net1,143,5631,588,182Mandatory Administrative Expenses822,882190,777Contractual Services37,75515,732Interest Expense324,52230,336Rent, Communications, and Utilities31,78321,601Salaries and Benefits31,78321,601Compensated Leave Expense7855Administrative Services2961,356Equipment, Materials, and Supplies329776Interagency Agreements426644Other Expenses3,469,0813,943,933Ret Operating Activity Before Extraordinary Item(3,296,264)(1,792,758)Extraordinary Item:0(2,120,639)Net Operating Activity\$(16,209,786)1,057,960Adjustments01,057,960Net Position, Beginning Balance, as Restated(12,785,138)\$(16,209,786)Previoualy Stated\$(12,785,138)\$(15,151,826)Approprised Funds Received\$5,539,7777,935,353Approprised Funds Received\$5,539,7777,935,353Approprised Funds Received\$(52,574)(1,256,264)Subaidy Reestinate(12,786)0Net Operating Activity(12,266)0			
Program Expenses1,091,5772,048,235Provision for Loan Defaults, Net1,143,5631,588,182Provision for Interest Rate Subsidies, Net1,143,5631,588,182Mandatory Administrative Expenses822,882190,777Contractual Services37,75515,732Interest Expense324,52230,536Rent, Communications, and Utilities1,9943,761Salaries and Benefits31,78321,601Compensated Leave Expense2961,355Equipment, Materials, and Supplies2961,356Equipment, Materials, and Supplies329776Interagency Agreements426644Other Expenses, Net13,06642,278Total Program Expenses3,469,0813,943,933Net Operating Activity Before Extraordinary Item(3,296,264)(1,792,758)Extraordinary Item:0(2,120,639)Net Position, Beginning Balance, as01,057,960Previoualy Stated(12,785,138)(16,209,786)Adjustments01,057,960Net Position, Beginning Balance, as01,057,960Restated(12,785,138)(15,151,826)Appropriated Funds Received6,539,7777,335,353Appropriated Funds Received6,539,7777,365,353Appropriated Funds Received(692,574)(1,656,268)Subaidy Reestimate(123,666)0	Interest Earned on Funds Deposited with U.S. Treasury	172,817	30,536
Provision for Loan Defaults, Net 1,091,577 2,048,235 Provision for Interest Rate Subsidies, Net 1,143,563 1,588,182 Mandatory Administrative Expenses 822,882 190,777 Contractual Services 37,755 15,732 Interest Expense 324,522 30,536 Rent, Communications, and Utilities 1,984 3,761 Salaries and Benefits 31,783 21,601 Compensated Leave Expense 78 55 Administrative Services 296 1,356 Equipment, Materials, and Supplies 329 776 Interagency Agreements 426 644 Other Expenses 3,469,081 3,943,933 Ret Operating Activity Before Extraordinary Item (3,296,264) (1,792,758) Extraordinary Item: 1 (3,296,264) \$(3,913,397) CHANGES IN NET POSITION 2 0 1,057,960 Net Position, Beginning Balance, as 0 1,057,960 Previously Stated 4,12,785,138) \$(16,209,786) Adjustments 0 1,057,960 Net Position, Beginning Balance, as 0 <	Total Program Revenues	172,817	2,151,175
Provision for Interest Rate Subsidies, Net 1,143,563 1,588,182 Mandatory Administrative Expenses 822,882 190,777 Contractual Services 37,755 15,732 Interest Expense 324,522 30,536 Rent, Communications, and Utilities 1,984 3,761 Salaries and Benefits 31,783 21,601 Compensated Leave Expense 78 55 Administrative Services 296 1,356 Equipment, Materials, and Supplies 329 776 Intergency Agreements 426 644 Other Expenses, Net 13,886 422,278 Total Program Expenses 3,469,081 3,943,933 Net Operating Activity Before Extraordinary Item (3,296,264) (1,792,758) Extraordinary Item: 70 (2,120,639) Net Operating Activity \$(12,785,138) \$(16,209,786) Adjustments 0 1,057,960 Net Position, Beginning Balance, as 0 1,057,960 Net Position, Beginning Balance, as 0 1,057,960 Net Position, Beginning Balance, as (12,785,138) (15,151,826) </td <td>Program Expenses</td> <td></td> <td></td>	Program Expenses		
Mandatory Administrative Expenses 822,882 190,777 Contractual Services 37,755 15,732 Intarest Expense 324,522 30,536 Rent, Communications, and Utilities 1,984 3,761 Salaries and Benefits 31,783 21,601 Compensated Leave Expense 78 55 Administrative Services 296 1,356 Equipment, Materials, and Supplies 329 776 Interagenery Agreements 426 644 Other Expenses, Net 13,086 42,278 Total Program Expenses 3,469,081 3,943,933 Ret Operating Activity Before Extraordinary Item (3,296,264) (1,792,758) Extraordinary Item: 7 0 (2,120,639) Net Operating Activity \$(12,785,138) \$(16,209,786) Adjustments 0 1,057,960 1,057,960 Net Position, Beginning Balance, as 0 1,057,960 1,057,960 Net Position, Beginning Balance, as 0 1,057,960 1,057,960 Net Position, Beginning Balance, as 0 1,057,960 1,057,960 N	Provision for Loan Defaults, Net		
Contractual Services 37,755 15,732 Interest Expense 324,522 30,536 Rent, Communications, and Utilities 1,984 3,761 Salaries and Benefits 31,783 21,601 Compensated Leave Expense 78 55 Administrative Services 296 1,356 Equipment, Materials, and Supplies 329 776 Interagency Agreements 426 644 Other Expenses, Net 13,886 42,278 Total Program Expenses 3,469,081 3,943,933 Net Operating Activity Before Extraordinary Item (3,296,264) (1,792,758) Extraordinary Item: 0 (2,120,639) Transfer to Treasury 0 (2,120,639) Net Operating Activity \$(12,785,138) \$(16,209,786) Adjustments 0 1,057,960 Net Position, Beginning Balance, as 0 1,057,960 Previously Stated (539,777 7,936,353 Appropriated Funds Received 6,539,777 7,936,353 Appropriated Funds Returned (622,574) (1,656,268) Subsidy Reestimate <	Provision for Interest Rate Subsidies, Net	1,143,563	
Solution Structure 324,522 30,536 Interest Expense 1,994 3,761 Salaries and Benefits 31,793 21,601 Compensated Leave Expense 78 55 Administrative Services 296 1,356 Equipment, Materials, and Supplies 329 776 Intergency Agreements 426 644 Other Expenses, Net 13,886 42,278 Yotal Program Expenses 3,469,081 3,943,933 Net Operating Activity Before Extraordinary Item (3,296,264) (1,792,758) Extraordinary Item: 7 13,296,264) (1,792,758) Extraordinary Item: 0 (2,120,639) (2,120,639) Net Operating Activity \$ (3,296,264) \$ (3,913,397) (3,913,397) CHANGES IN NET POSITION 5 (3,913,397) (1,057,960) Net Position, Beginning Balance, as 0 1,057,960 Restated (12,785,138) (15,151,826) Adjustments 0 1,057,960 Net Position, Beginning Balance, as 0 1,057,960 Restated (12,785,138) (15	Mandatory Administrative Expenses	822,882	190,777
Anterior or munications, and Utilities 1,984 3,761 Salaries and Benefits 31,783 21,601 Compensated Leave Expense 78 55 Administrative Services 296 1,356 Equipment, Materials, and Supplies 329 776 Interagency Agreements 426 644 Other Expenses, Net 13,886 42,278 Total Program Expenses 3,469,081 3,943,933 Net Operating Activity Before Extraordinary Item (3,296,264) (1,792,758) Extraordinary Item: 0 {2,120,639} Transfer to Treasury 0 {2,120,639} Net Operating Activity \$ (12,785,138) \$ (16,209,786) Adjustments 0 1,057,960 Net Position, Beginning Balance, as 0 1,057,960 <tr< td=""><td>Contractual Services</td><td>37,755</td><td></td></tr<>	Contractual Services	37,755	
Salaries and Benefits 31,783 21,601 Compensated Leave Expense 78 55 Administrative Services 296 1,356 Equipment, Materials, and Supplies 329 776 Interagency Agreements 426 644 Other Expenses, Net 13,886 42,278 Total Program Expenses 3,469,081 3,943,933 Net Operating Activity Before Extraordinary Item (3,296,264) (1,792,758) Extraordinary Item: 7 (3,296,264) (1,792,758) Extraordinary Item: 0 (2,120,639) (2,120,639) Net Operating Activity \$ (3,296,264) \$ (1,792,758) (3,913,397) CHANGES IN NET POSITION \$ (12,785,138) \$ (16,209,786) Net Position, Beginning Balance, as 0 1,057,960 Net Position, Beginning Balance, as 0 1,057,960 Net Position, Beginning Balance, as 0 1,057,960 Net Position, Beginning Balance, as (12,785,138) \$ (15,151,826) Appropriated Funds Received 6,539,777 7,936,353 Appropriated Funds Received (692,574) (1,656,258) </td <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>			
Compensated Leave Expense 78 55 Administrative Services 296 1,356 Equipment, Materials, and Supplies 329 776 Interagency Agreements 426 644 Other Expenses, Net 13,886 42,278 Total Program Expenses 3,469,081 3,943,933 Net Operating Activity Before Extraordinary Item (3,296,264) (1,792,758) Extraordinary Item: 0 (2,120,639) Transfer to Treasury 0 (2,120,639) Net Operating Activity \$ (3,296,264) \$ (3,913,397) CHANGES IN NET POSITION \$ (12,785,138) \$ (16,209,786) Net Position, Beginning Balance, as 0 1,057,960 Net Position, Beginning Balance, as 0 1,057,960 Net Position, Beginning Balance, as (12,785,138) (15,151,826) Appropriated Funds Received 6,539,777 7,936,353 Appropriated Funds Received (692,574) (1,656,288) Subsidy Resetimate (13,296,264) (3,913,397)	Rent, Communications, and Utilities	1,984	3,761
Component late very cost 296 1,356 Administrative services 296 1,356 Equipment, Materials, and Supplies 329 776 Interagency Agreements 426 644 Other Expenses, Net 13,886 42,278 Total Program Expenses 3,469,081 3,943,933 Net Operating Activity Before Extraordinary Item (3,296,264) (1,792,758) Extraordinary Item: 7 (3,296,264) (1,792,758) Extraordinary Item: 0 (2,120,639) (3,913,397) Net Operating Activity \$ (3,296,264) \$ (16,209,786) (3,913,397) CHANGES IN NET POSITION * 0 1,057,960 Net Position, Beginning Balance, as 0 1,057,960 Net Position, Beginning Balance, as 0 1,057,960 Net Position, Beginning Balance, as (12,785,138) (15,151,926) Appropriated Funds Received 6,539,777 7,936,353 Appropriated Funds Returned (692,574) (1,656,268) Subaidy Reestimate (13,296,264) (3,913,397)	Salaries and Benefits	31,783	21,601
Remains of the second state of the	Compensated Leave Expense	78	55
AdjustmentsAdjustmentsAdjustmentsAdjustmentsAdjustmentsInteragency Agreements426544Other Expenses, Net13,88642,278Total Program Expenses3,469,0813,943,933Net Operating Activity Before Extraordinary Item(3,296,264)(1,792,758)Extraordinary Item:0(2,120,639)Transfer to Treasury0(2,120,639)Net Operating Activity\$ (3,296,264)\$ (3,913,397)CEANGES IN NET POSITION\$ (12,785,138)\$ (16,209,786)Net Position, Beginning Balance, as Previously Stated01,057,960Net Position, Beginning Balance, as Restated(12,785,138)\$ (15,151,826)Adjustments01,057,9601,057,960Net Position, Beginning Balance, as Restated(12,785,138)(15,151,826)Appropriated Funds Received6,539,777 (1,656,268)0Net Operating Activity(3,296,264)(3,913,397)	Administrative Services	296	1,356
Interlaying Agreements 13,886 42,278 Other Expenses, Net 13,886 42,278 Total Program Expenses 3,469,081 3,943,933 Net Operating Activity Before Extraordinary Item (3,296,264) (1,792,758) Extraordinary Item: 0 (2,120,639) Transfer to Treasury 0 (2,120,639) Net Operating Activity \$ (3,296,264) \$ (3,913,397) CHANGES IN NET POSITION \$ (12,785,138) \$ (16,209,786) Net Position, Beginning Balance, as 0 1,057,960 Net Position, Beginning Received 6,539,777 7,936,353 Appropriated Fund	Equipment, Materials, and Supplies	329	776
Other Expenses, Net 13,886 42,278 Total Program Expenses 3,469,081 3,943,933 Ret Operating Activity Before Extraordinary Item (3,296,264) (1,792,758) Extraordinary Item: (3,296,264) (1,792,758) Transfer to Treasury 0 (2,120,639) Net Operating Activity \$ (3,296,264) \$ (3,913,397) CHANGES IN NET POSITION \$ (12,785,138) \$ (16,209,786) Net Position, Beginning Balance, as 0 1,057,960 Net Position Received 6,539,777 7,936,353 Appropriated Funds Returned (692,574) (1,656,268) Net Operating Activity (3,296,264) (3,913,397)	Interagency Agreements	426	644
Net Operating Activity Before Extraordinary Item(3,296,264)(1,792,758)Extraordinary Item:0(2,120,639)Transfer to Treasury0(2,120,639)Net Operating Activity\$ (3,296,264)\$ (3,913,397)CHANGES IN MET POSITION\$ (12,785,138)\$ (16,209,786)Net Position, Beginning Balance, as Previously Stated\$ (12,785,138)\$ (16,209,786)Adjustments01,057,960Net Position, Beginning Balance, as Restated(12,785,138)\$ (15,151,826)Appropriated Funds Received6,539,7777,936,353Appropriated Funds Returned(123,686)0Net Operating Activity(3,296,254)(3,913,397)		13,886	42,278
Rxtraordinary Item: Transfer to Treasury 0 (2,120,639) Net Operating Activity \$ (3,296,264) \$ (3,913,397) CHANGES IN NET POSITION \$ (12,785,138) \$ (16,209,786) Net Position, Beginning Balance, as Previously Stated 0 1,057,960 Net Position, Beginning Balance, as Restated (12,785,138) \$ (15,151,826) Appropriated Funds Received 5,539,777 7,936,353 Appropriated Funds Returned (692,574) (1,656,268) Net Operating Activity (3,296,254) (3,913,397)	Total Program Expenses	3,469,081	3,943,933
Transfer to Treasury 0 (2,120,639) Net Operating Activity \$ (3,296,264) \$ (3,913,397) CHANGES IN NET POSITION \$ (12,785,138) \$ (16,209,786) Net Position, Beginning Balance, as Previously Stated \$ (12,785,138) \$ (16,209,786) Adjustments 0 1,057,960 Net Position, Beginning Balance, as Restated (12,785,138) (15,151,826) Appropriated Funds Received 6,539,777 7,936,353 Appropriated Funds Returned (123,686) 0 Net Operating Activity (3,296,254) (3,913,397)	Net Operating Activity Before Extraordinary Item	(3,296,264)	(1,792,758)
Net Operating Activity \$ (3,296,264) \$ (3,913,397) CHANGES IN NET POSITION ************************************	Extraordinary Itea:		
CHANGES IN NET POSITION Net Position, Beginning Balance, as \$(12,785,138) \$(16,209,786) Adjustments 0 1,057,960 Net Position, Beginning Balance, as 0 0 Net Operating Activity 0 0 Net Operating Activity (3,296,2564) (3,913,397)	Transfer to Treasury	0	(2,120,639)
Net Position, Beginning Balance, as \$(12,785,138) \$(16,209,786) Adjustments 0 1,057,960 Net Position, Beginning Balance, as 0 1,057,960 Restated (12,785,138) (15,151,826) Appropriated Funds Received 5,539,777 7,936,353 Appropriated Funds Returned (692,574) (1,656,268) Subsidy Resatimate 0 0 Net Operating Activity (3,296,254) (3,913,397)	Net Operating Activity	\$ (3,296,264)	<u>\$ (3,913,397)</u>
Previously Stated \$(12,785,138) \$(16,209,786) Adjustments 0 1,057,960 Net Position, Beginning Balance, as Restated (12,785,138) (15,151,826) Appropriated Funds Received 6,539,777 7,936,353 Appropriated Funds Returned (692,574) (1,656,258) Subsidy Resetimate 0 0 Net Operating Activity (3,296,254) (3,913,397)	CHANGES IN NET POSITION		
Previously Stated \$(12,785,138) \$(16,209,786) Adjustments 0 1,057,960 Net Position, Beginning Balance, as Restated (12,785,138) (15,151,826) Appropriated Funds Received 6,539,777 7,936,353 Appropriated Funds Returned (692,574) (1,656,258) Subsidy Resetimate 0 0 Net Operating Activity (3,296,254) (3,913,397)	Net Position, Beginning Balance, as		
Adjustments 0 1,057,960 Net Position, Beginning Balance, as Restated (12,785,138) (15,151,926) Appropriated Funds Received 6,539,777 7,936,353 Appropriated Funds Returned (692,574) (1,656,268) Subsidy Resetimate 0 0 Net Operating Activity (3,296,254) (3,913,397)		\$(12,785,138)	\$(16,209,786)
Net Position, Beginning Balance, as Restated (12,785,138) (15,151,826) Appropriated Funds Received 6,539,777 7,936,353 Appropriated Funds Returned (692,574) (1,656,268) Subsidy Resatimate 0 0 Net Operating Activity (3,296,254) (3,913,397)	Adjustments	0	1,057,960
Appropriated Funds Received 6,539,777 7,936,353 Appropriated Funds Returned (692,574) (1,656,258) Subsidy Reestimate (123,685) 0 Net Operating Activity (3,296,264) (3,913,397)	Net Position, Beginning Balance, as		
Appropriated Funds Returned (692,574) (1,656,268) Subsidy Reestimate (123,685) 0 Net Operating Activity (3,296,264) (3,913,397)	Restated	(12,785,138)	(15,151,826)
Subsidy Reestimate (123,685) 0 Net Operating Activity (3,296,254) (3,913,397)	Appropriated Funds Received	6,539,777	7,936,353
Subsidy Reestimate (123,685) 0 Net Operating Activity (3,296,264) (3,913,397)	Appropriated Funds Returned	(692,574)	(1,656,268)
Net Operating Activity (3,296,264) (3,913,397)		(123,686)	0
		(3,296,264)	(3,913,397)
		\$(10,357,885)	\${12,785,138}

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

1

87.54

Lan.

í ág

ALC: NO

-

Ì

Taxas (A.P.B.B.W.)

and the second

Statements of Cash Flows

(Dollars in Thousands)	C, 1993 and 1992	
	1993	1992
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:		
Cash Provided		
Default Claim Principal Collected	\$ 657,982	\$ 657,295
Default Claim Interest Collected	354,792	320,558
Administrative Charges	1,860	2,603
Origination Fees	509,912	422,362
Reinsurance Fees	35,066	49,330
Penalty Fees	40	43
Other Fees	8,397	8,356
Collections on Advances to Guaranty Agencies	1,047	1,745
Interest Income	172,817	30,536
Other Operating Cash Provided	0	7,492
Total Operating Cash Provided	1,741,913	1,500,320
Cash Used		
Default Claim Payments	(2,474,110)	(2,679,207)
Death, Disability, and Bankruptcy Payments	(354,144)	(176,536)
Interest Subsidy Payments	(1,760,938)	(1,748,853
Special Allowance Payments	(106,657)	(223,593
Closed School Payments	(1,277)	` ´ ´ ´
Mandatory Administrative Expenses	(170,774)	(158,101)
Salaries and Benefits	(28, 521)	(21,684)
Rent, Communications, Utilities	(4,238)	(3,761)
Contractual Services	(34,416)	(17,732
Supplies and Materials	(314)	(776)
Interest to U.S. Treasury	(151,705)	0
Other Operating Cash Used	(13,955)	(37,166)
	(13,300)	(31,100)
Total Operating Cash Used	(5,101,149)	(5,067,409)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities	(3,359,236)	(3,567,089)
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES:		
Appropriated Funds Received	6,539,777	7,936,353
Appropriated Funds Returned	(1,750,534)	(598,308
Subsidy Reestimate	(123,686)	0
Borrowing from (payments to) U.S. Treasury	(31,696)	2,090,103
Funds Transferred to U.S. Treasury	0	(2,120,639
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities	4,633,861	7,307,509
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash	1,274,625	3,740,420
Fund Balances with U.S. Treasury, Beginning of Year	4,023,651	283,231
Fund Balances with U.S. Treasury, End of Year	\$ 5,298,276	\$_4, 023,651

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

.

And a second

CONTRACTOR OF

V I - E PROVESION

.

ŝ

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, (Dollars in Thousands)	, 1993 and 1992	
	<u>1993</u>	1992
RECONCILIATION OF NET OPERATING ACTIVITY BEFORE APPROPRIATIONS TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BT OPERATING ACTIVITIES		
Net Operating Activity	\$(3,296,264)	<u>\$(3,913,397)</u>
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Operating Activity to Net Cash Provided (Used) By Operating Activities		
Decrease (Increase) in Advances to Guaranty Agencies, Net Decrease (Increase) in Accounts Receivable, Net Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities for Loan Guarantees Cost of Emergency Unemployment Act Benefit Extension Increase (Decrease) in Accued Salaries	1,036 15,541 (81,365) 0 1,738	868 (14,013) (1,731,348) 2,090,103 643 55
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Compensated Leave	<u>78</u> (62,972)	<u> </u>
Net Adjustments Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities	(62,972) \$(3,359,236)	\$(3,567,089)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of t	these financial sta	atements.

-

:

ź

r.

ļ

-

No.

Statements of Budgetary Resources and Actual Expenses

For	the Fiscal Year Ended Septemi (Dollars in Th	Der 30, 1993 and 1992		
		1993	1992	
BUDGET				
RESOURCES		<u>\$7,011,885</u>	\$7,571,410	
OBLIGATIONS				
Direct		5,873,450	4,226,649	
Reimbursed		1,138,435	3,339,867	
ACTUAL				
Frogram Expense		3,469,081	3,943,933	
Extraordinary I	tem & Extraordinary Item	0 \$3,469,081	2,120,639 \$6,064,572	
	-			
BUDGET RECONCILIATIO	R			
Total Expenses	& Extraordinary Item	\$3,469,081	\$6,064,572	
Add:				
Other Expended	Budget Authority	4,089,943	4,919,408	
Other Expendit	ures Not Expensed	0	31,838	
	and Extraordinary Item not Co able Budgetary Resources	overed		
Extraordinary		0	2,120,639	
Interest Expen		172,817	0	
Salaries and B		9,739	0	
Annual Compens		78	55	
Unfunded Progr		362,160	1,328,608	
	Prior Years' Obligations	51,359	102,098	
Contractual Se		2,348	0	
Accrued Expendi	tures	6,960,524	7,464,418	
Less Reimbursem		1,138,435	3,339,867	
Accrued Expendi		\$5,822,089	\$4,124,551	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		116.2776.277	<u>+-+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++</u>	

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

i i

-

And a second

an and a second

ŝ

Product I

.

Notes to the Principal Financial Statements

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION FEDERAL FAMILY EDUCATION LOAN PROGRAM NOTES TO PRINCIPAL PINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEPTEMBER 30, 1993 and 1992 **NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Basis of Presentation** These financial statements have been prepared to report the financial position, results of operations and changes in net position, cash flows, and budgetary resources and actual expenses of the Federal Family Education Loan (FFEL) Program of the Department of Education, as required by the Chief Financial Officers Act of 1990 (Public Law 101-576). Education prepared them from the books and records of the FFEL Program in accordance with the FFEL Program's accounting policies, which are summarized in this note. These statements are therefore different from the financial reports, also prepared by Education for the FFEL Program pursuant to OMB directives, that are used to monitor and control the FFEL Program's use of budgetary resources. FFEL Program's accounting policies follow an "other comprehensive basis of accounting," comprising the following hierarchy, agreed to by the Comptroller General, the Secretary of the Treasury and the Director of the Office of Management and Budget (OMB), who are Joint Financial Management Improvement Program (JFMIP) principals: 1. The accounting principles, standards and requirements approved by the three JFMIP principals. 2. Form and content requirements in OMB Bulletin 94-01, Form and Content of Agency Financial Statements, dated November 16, 1993, and subsequent issuances. 3. Accounting standards contained in agency accounting policy, procedures manuals, and/or related guidance as of March 29, 1991, so long as they are prevalent practices. 4. Accounting principles published by authoritative standard setting bodies and other authoritative sources (1) in the absence of other guidance in the first three parts of this hierarchy, and (2) if the use of such accounting standards improves the meaningfulness of the financial statements.

ŝ

1

	U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION Federal family Education Loan Program
	NOTES TO PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEPTEMBER 30, 1993 and 1992
	approved the following deviation from OMB Builetin 94-01 in the FFEL Program's Sipal Statements :
	The Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Position follow the format suggested in the Governmental Accounting Standards Board's <u>Codification of</u> <u>Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards</u> , which identifies a separate disclosure for the total effects of operations, exclusive of appropriations and intra-governmental funding sources.
	ain amounts from the fiscal year 1992 financial statements have been reclassified nform with the current year's presentation.
Repo	rting Entity
prog 91X0 Educ oper- and i post: exch scho	FFEL Program, formerly known as the Guaranteed Student Loan Program, is a ram of the United States Department of Education (appropriation symbols 230, 91X0231, and 91X4251). The FFEL Program was authorized by the Higher ation Act of 1965, as amended (HEA). As currently authorized, the program ates through state and private nonprofit guaranty agencies to provide insurance interest supplements on loans made to eligible students attending participating secondary schools. The program uses private loan capital, supplied almost isively by commercial lenders, but in some instances by state agencies and ols. Loans disbursed under the program are guaranteed by guaranty agencies reinsured by the federal government.
The	e are five FFEL Program components:
(1)	Federal Stafford Loans (Subsidized) - under this component, need-based loans are made to undergraduate and graduate students. The federal government pays the loan interest while the student is in school and during certain grace and deferment periods;
(2)	Unsubsidized Federal Stafford Loans - under this component, loans are made to undergraduate and independent graduate students. These loans do not have interest subsidies for borrowers. The first loans under this component, authorized by the HEA Amendments of 1992 (Public Law 102-325), were guaranteed during fiscal year 1993;

10000

.

Ĩ.

į

-



ı

2

1



U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION FEDERAL FAMILY EDUCATION LOAN PROGRAM

NOTES TO PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEPTEMBER 30, 1993 and 1992

and (2) a Program Account to record subsidy costs associated with loan guarantee commitments made during fiscal year 1992 and beyond, as well as administrative expenses of the program. Administrative expenses include discretionary expenses for salaries, expenses, and overhead directly related to the program. Administrative expenses also include mandatory expenses such as administrative cost allowances, supplemental preclaims assistance payments and contract collection costs. For loans made prior to 1993, these mandatory expenses are separately identified on a cash basis. However, beginning with the 1993 cohort, mandatory administrative expenses are included in the FFEL estimate of subsidy costs of each year's cohort. (A cohort is a group of loan guarantees committed by the program in the same fiscal year.) The subsidy costs are estimated on a net present value basis and the Program Account receives appropriations for these costs. In addition to the budgetary accounts, the FFEL Program has a non-budgetary account called the Financing Account, which records all cash flows resulting from loan guarantee commitments made during fiscal year 1992 and beyond. The cash flows include the subsidy costs from the Program Account, interest earned on uninvested funds, and defaulted loan collections. The Statements of Budgetary Resources and Actual Expenses reflect the transactions of the Program and Liquidating Accounts only.

Financing Sources and Program Revenues

The FFEL Program receives the majority of the funding needed to support the program through appropriations. The FFEL Program is funded primarily by two appropriations: (1) an appropriation for its Liquidating Account (appropriation symbol 91X0230), and (2) an appropriation for its Program Account (appropriation symbol 91X0231).

The FFEL Program recognized program revenues during fiscal year 1992 for estimated future collections on defaulted loans resulting from enacted legislation. This legislation, the Emergency Unemployment Compensation Act of 1991 (Public Law 102-164) and the Higher Education Amendments of 1992, authorized collections on defaulted loans through offsets to borrowers' IRS tax refunds and wage garnishments and eliminated previously imposed time limitations on the collection period. In addition, under CRA, the FFEL Program receives interest income on uninvested funds in the Financing Account.

Fund Balances With U.S. Treasury

The FFEL Program does not maintain cash in commercial bank accounts. Cash receipts and disbursements are processed by the U.S. Treasury. The Fund



ź



ŝ

	U.S. DEPARTMENT (Federal family educat		RAM	
	NOTES TO PRINCIPAL FINA SEPTEMBER 30, 199	NCIAL STATEMENT		
Liabilities f	or loan guarantees at September 3	0, 1993 and 1992	were (in th	ousands)
			1993	
		Pre-1992	Post-1991	
	THE LIABILITIES	Loans	Loans	Total
	faults Fayable	\$3,053,107	\$1,206,974	\$ 4,260,081
	t & Special Allowance Benefits Payable my Administrative Costs Payable	802,000	1,067,662	1,869,662
Collect	ions on Defaulted Loans Receivable	76,810 (327,289)	5,477	e2,287
	ceivable	(16,526)	(51,792) (543,631)	(379,081 (560,157)
	1, Short-Term	3,588,102	1,684,690	5,272,792
	IN LIABILITIES			
	faulte Psyable t 6 Special Allowance Benefits Psyable	2,214,659	4,119,711	6,334,370
	ry Administrative Costs Payable	1,419,845 1,227,603	1,603,006	3,222,854 1,347,363
Fors Be	ceivable	(174,669)	-0-	(174,669)
	ions on Defaulted Loans Receivable	(359,986)	(2,212,834)	(2,572,820)
Interes	t Payable	-0-	203, 353	203,353
Subtota	1, Long-Yarm	4, 327, 453	4,012,998	8,360,451
TOTAL		\$7, 915, 555	<u>\$5,717,688</u>	\$13,633,243
			1992	
88097-7	SNG LIABILITIES	Pre-1992 Loans	Post-1991	
	faulta Payable	\$2,961,089	Losns \$ 259,324	Total 3,220,413
	t & Special Allowance Densfits Payable	1,253,000	781,750	2,044,758
Mandato	ry Administrative Costs Payable	45,522	3,266	48,788
Collect	ions on Defaulted Loans Receivable	(736,970)	(3,085)	(740,055)
Interes	t Psysble	-0-	30,536	30, 536
	ceivable	-0-	(177,066)	(177,066)
Subtots	1, Short-Tecm	3,532,641	894,733	4, 627, 374
1/29-11	W LIABILITIES			
	faults Payable	4,888,062	2,478,530	7,366,592
Interes	t & Special Allowence Sensfits Payable	2,373,410	1,044,307	3.417.717
	ry Administrative Costs Payable	292, 387	41,001	333,468
Mandato	ions on Defaulted Loans Receivable			(1,630,543
Mandato Collect		{1,189,927}	[640,616]	
Mandato Collect	lone on Defaulted Loans Mecelvable 1, Long-Term	<u>{1,189,927}</u> <u>6,363,932</u>	2,923,302	9,287,234

ŝ

10000

į

-

Į

1

ş

٢

-

-



GAO/AIMD-94-131 and ACN 17-30302 FFELP's FY 1993 Financial Audit

Party and

and the second

ź

Ş

•				
ſ		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	····	
Ì		ENT OF EDUCATIO		
	FEDERAL FAMILY ED	JUCATION LOAN P	ROGRAM	
	NOTES TO PRINCIPAL SEPTEMBER 3	L FINANCIAL STATEM 0, 1993 and 1992	@nts	
		-, <u>.</u>		
	Subsidy expense for the FFEL program were (in thousands):	incurred in fiscal	years 1993 and 1992	
l				
ł		FY 1993	FY 1992	
l	Current Year's Estimate Provision for Loan Defaults (Net)	\$1,452,945	\$2,048,235	
I	Provision for Interest Rate Subsidies (Net)	1,047,509	1,586,182	
ł	Mandatory Administrative Expense Interest Expense	249,045 35,923	190,777 30,536	
I	Subtotal, Current Year's Estimate	2,785,422	3,857,730	
I				
I	Notifications			
	Fiscal Year 1992 loans	- 0 -	- 0 -	
	Pre-1992 loens Subtotel, Modifications	- 0 -	- 0 -	
	Receiinsten Fiscal Year 1992 loans	104,025	- 0 -	
	Pre-1992 loans	493,097	- 0 -	
	Subtotal, Reestinates Total Subsidy Expense	597,122	- 0 - \$3,857,730	
I				
Ì				
	NOTE 4 - DUE TO U.S. TREASURY			
ļ	During its fiscal year 1992 mid-session r	reviews of the FFEL	Program's subsidy costs,	
1	Education concluded that \$1.058 billion	a of funds drawn f	rom the appropriation for	
	the Program Account would not be need	led. This amount i	s included in the principal	
	statements as Due to U.S. Treasury.	The amount was	transferred to Treasury	
1	during fiscal year 1993.		-	
	NOTE 5 - BORROWING FROM U.S. TR	EASURY		
	On September 30, 1992, the FFEL Pro	•		
ļ	Treasury in accordance with OMB ins		-	
	noncontractual modifications made to i	•	9	
	repay the borrowing with collection		•	
	noncontractual modifications. These co	-	•	
	of seven years. During fiscal year 1	-	•	
	reduce the balance of its Treasury deb	ot as follows (in the	ousends):	
	Sorrowing from U.S. Treasury, Balance 10/1/9	92 \$2,090,1	03	
	Psyment on Outstanding Balance, 1993	(31,6	96)	
	Borrowing from U.S. Treasury, Belance 9/30/5	93 \$ <u>2,058,4</u>	07	

Ĭ

No.

1

1

ALC: NO.

ļ

and the second



ŝ

ŝ

......

1. June 1.

-

10,004,004,0

5

teres

ţ.

8



DEFINITE TIMENEL STREPTSupersons (funded and unfunded) for the FEEL Program for fiscal years 1993 and 1992 were (in thousands):Important for thousands(in, Net for thousands):Important for thousands too thousandsImportant for thousands<					
1992 were (in thousands): 1992 1992 Provision for Lean Defaulte, Net Lon Defaulte, Set Forded Unfunded Total Collections (55,659) Colspan="2">Colspan="2">Colspan="2">Colspan="2">Colspan="2">Colspan="2">Colspan="2">Colspan="2">Colspan="2">Colspan="2">Colspan="2">Colspan="2">Colspan="2">Colspan="2">Colspan="2">Colspan="2">Colspan="2">Colspan="2" Import colspan="2" Subtotal Provision for Lean Defaulte, Net Interest Rate Subsidies, Net Interest Rate Subsidies, Net Interest Rate Subsidies, Net Interest Rate Subsidies, Net Subtotal Provision for Interest Rate Subtotal Provision for Interest Ra		0, 1993 a nd			
1992 were (in thousands): 1992 1992 Provision for Lean Defaulte, Net Lon Defaulte, Set Forded Unfunded Total Collections (55,659) Colspan="2">Colspan="2">Colspan="2">Colspan="2">Colspan="2">Colspan="2">Colspan="2">Colspan="2">Colspan="2">Colspan="2">Colspan="2">Colspan="2">Colspan="2">Colspan="2">Colspan="2">Colspan="2">Colspan="2">Colspan="2" Import colspan="2" Subtotal Provision for Lean Defaulte, Net Interest Rate Subsidies, Net Interest Rate Subsidies, Net Interest Rate Subsidies, Net Interest Rate Subsidies, Net Subtotal Provision for Interest Rate Subtotal Provision for Interest Ra					
Funded Unfunded Total Provision for Lean Defaults, Set \$2,753,838 \$ - 0 - \$ 2,733,838 Collections (1,605,565) - 0 - (1,605,565) Collections (1,605,565) - 0 - (1,605,565) Subtotal, Provision for Lean Defaults, Net (1,001,107) - 0 - (1,605,565) Forvision for Interest Mate Subsidies, Net (1,001,107) - 0 - (1,605,565) Interest & Special Allowers MessenSits (1,001,107) - 0 - (1,605,665) Origination Fees (122,402) - 0 - (024,400) Subtotal, Prov. for Interest Mate Subsidies, Net 1,141,563 Handstory Administrative Expanses 666,469 136,733 622,882 Interest Expanse 13,014,221 348,223 3,322,544 Other Expanses, Net - 0 - 13,885 13,985 13,985 Substotal, Promises, Ret - 0 - 78 78 78 Company Set, Ret - 0 - 78 78 78 Graphic Set	Expenses (funded and unfunded) for	the FFEL P	rogram for	fiscal years 1993	and
Funded Unfunded Total John Defaults \$2,753,838 \$ - 0 - \$2,733,838 Collections (1,605,565) - 0 - \$1,763,555) Reinsurance Tees (36,698) - 0 - \$1,763,555) Subtotal, Provision for Lean Defaults, Net 1,001,377 - 0 - \$1,763,555) Trotest 6 Special Lineware Basefits 1,775,083 191,880 3,967,963 Origination Fees (825,400) - 0 - \$(224,400) Subtotal, Prov. for Interest Base (825,400) - 0 - \$(224,400) Subtotal, Prov. for Interest Base 1025,222 - 0 - \$(224,802) Bubtotal, Prov. for Interest Base 3,042,271 346,273 3,382,544 Other Expenses 50,044,271 346,273 3,382,544 Other Expenses Inform Sealaries - 0 - \$13,095 33,096 Total Subsidies Ret - 0 - \$13,095 33,096 Total Subsidies Ret - 0 - \$78 78 Salaries and Administrative Expenses 35,407 346,377,35 Salaries and Administrative Expenses 236,403 31,783 Compensetal Leary Expenses - 0 - \$78 78 Salaries and Administrative Expenses <t< td=""><td>1992 were (in thousands):</td><td></td><td>-</td><td>·</td><td></td></t<>	1992 were (in thousands):		-	·	
Provision for Lean Defaults, Set			1993	<u></u>	
Collections (1.005.565) - 0 - (1.605.565) Reinsurance Fees (1.005.565) - 0 - (1.605.565) Subtots. Provision for Loan Defaults, Wet (1.001.577) - 0 - (1.605.565) Provision for Interest Eats Subsidies, Wet (1.001.577) - 0 - (1.605.565) Provision for Interest Eats Subsidies, Wet (1.707.08) 191.800 1.967.963 Origination Fees (024.400) - 0 - (024.400) 1.041.3363 Subtots, Prov. for Interest Bate (02.400) - 0 - (024.400) Subhidies, Ret _ 951.603 191.800 1.143.363 Mandatory Administrative Expenses 664.489 156.393 622.882 Interest Expense 124.522 - 0 - 244.522 - 244.522 Total Expense 3.034.271 340.273 3.302.544 Other Expenses batore Salaries - 0 - 13.855 13.965 Salaries and Administrative Expenses 50.407 3.034.271 362.159 3.936.630 Salaries and Resofite 22.045 9.736 31.763 - 0 - 78 78 Compensated Leave Expense - 0 - 78 78 - 0 - 295 - 0 - 295 - 0 - 295 - 0 - 295					
Subtotal, Provision for Loan Defaults, Fet 1,091,577 - 0 - 1,091,577 Provision for Interest Mate Subsidies, Het Interest 4 Special Allowance Basefits 1,775,083 191,860 3,967,963 Origination Fees (824,400) - 0 - (824,400) - 0 - (824,400) Subtotal, Prov. for Interest Bate (824,400) - 0 - (824,400) - 0 - (824,400) Subsidies, Het .951,663 191,860 3,141,363 Mandatory Administrative Expanses 666,489 156,393 622,882 Interest Expanse 124,522 - 0 - 324,522 Total Subsidy Expanses 3,034,271 348,273 3,382,544 Other Expanses, Het - 0 - 13,886 13,985 Subisitizative Supset 3,034,271 362,159 3,396,630 Salaries and Administrative Expanses - 0 - 78 78 Compression Expresse - 0 - 78 78 Contractual Gervices 35,407 2,348 37,755 Administrative Expresse 295 - 0 - 296 Schartiss and Administrative Expanses 295	Collections	(1,605,565)	- 0 -	[1,605,565]	
Interest 6 Special Allowence Reperties 1,775,083 191,880 1,967,963 Origination Fees (224,400) -0 - (224,400) Subordal, Prov. for Interest Rets (22,460) -0 - (224,400) Subordal, Prov. for Interest Rets 991,663 191,860 1,143,363 Mandatory Administrative Expanses 666,489 156,393 622,882 Interest Expanse 124,522 -0 - 324,522 Total Subsidy Expanses 3,034,271 348,273 3,382,544 Other Expanses, Net -0 - 13,886 23,095 Total Subsidy Expanses 3,034,271 362,159 3,396,630 Salaries and Administrative Expanses -0 - 78 78 Salaries and Administrative Expanses -0 - 78 78 Contractual Services 35,407 2,348 37,755 Administrative Services 295 -0 - 13,986 37,755 Administrative Services 295 -0 - 1,984 329 Contractual Services 295 -0 - 1,986 329 Retries and Administrative Services 295 -0 - 326 Retries and Administrative Services 295 -0 - 1					
Subtotal, Prov. for Interest Bate 951,663 191,660 1,143,363 Mandatory Administrative Expenses 666,489 156,393 622,882 Interest Expenses 124,522 - 0 - 224,522 Total Subsidy Expenses 3,034,271 346,273 3,382,544 Other Expenses, Bet - 0 - 13,886 13,886 ftrail Expenses Enfors Salaries - 0 - 13,886 13,986 Salaries and Administrative Expenses 3,034,271 362,159 3,396,430 Salaries and Benefits 22,045 9,736 31,783 Contractual Services 35,407 2,348 37,755 Administrative Services 295 - 0 - 13,884 Zoutractual Services 35,407 2,348 37,755 Administrative Services 295 - 0 - 196 Rent, Communications and Writities 1,984 - 0 - 1,984 Zoutpent, Muterials and Supplice 329 - 0 - 122,66 Total Selaries and Administrative Services - 0 - 122,66 Services 124,64 - 0 - 1,984 - 0 -	Interest 4 Special Allowance Benefits				
Mandatory Administrative Expenses 666,489 156,393 622,882 Interest Expense 124,522 - 0 - 324,322 Total Subsidy Expenses 3,034,271 346,273 3,382,544 Other Expenses before Salarias - 0 - 13,886 13,986 Subsidy Expenses 3,034,271 362,159 3,396,430 Salarias and Administrative Expenses 3,034,271 362,159 3,396,430 Salarias and Administrative Expenses - 0 - 78 78 Compensated Leave Expense - 0 - 78 78 Contractual Services 35,407 2,348 37,755 Administrative Expenses 225 - 0 - 1964 Equipment, Watarials and Bupplies 329 - 0 - 12,964 Equipment, Materials and Supplies 329 - 0 - 129 Intergency Agreements 625 - 0 - 425 Total Salarias and Administrative Expanses 60,407 12,169 72,651	Subtotal, Prov. for Interest Rate				
Interest Expense 124,522 - 0 - 324,522 Total Submidy Expense 3,034,271 348,271 3,382,544 Other Expenses, Net - 0 - 13,885 13,985 Submidtrative Expenses 3,034,271 362,159 3,396,430 Salaries and Administrative Expenses 3,034,271 362,159 3,396,430 Salaries and Administrative Expenses 22,045 9.736 31,783 Comparated Leave Expenses - 0 - 78 78 Contractual Services 35,407 2,348 37,755 Administrative Expenses 256 - 0 - 1966 Fent. Communications and Utilities 1,966 - 0 - 1,966 Subministrative Services 329 - 0 - 1,966 Fent. Communications and Utilities 1,966 - 0 - 1,966 Springent, Waterials and Supplices 329 - 0 - 122,166 Total Selaries and Admin. Expenses 60,407 12,166 72,651					
intal Expanses bafors Salaries 3,034,271 362,159 3,396,430 Salaries and Administrative Expanses 53/8718 31,783 Compensated Leave Expanse -0 - 78 78 Contractual Services 35,407 2,348 37,755 Administrative Services 296 -0 - 296 Factor Contractual Services 296 -0 - 1,984 Zquipment, Nutarials and Supplies 329 -0 - 329 Interseptory Agreements 426 -0 - 426 Total Salaries and Adminis 60,407 12,164 72,651	Interest Expense	324,522	- 0 -	324, 522	
and Administrative Expenses Selaries and Administrative Expenses Selaries and Benefits 22,045 9,736 31,703 Compensation Leave Expenses Contractual Services 35,407 2,346 37,755 Administrative Services 296 - 0 - 296 Sent. Communications and Utilities 1,966 - 0 - 1,984 Equipment, Nuterials and Supplies 329 - 0 - 329 Intersectory Agreements <u>426</u> - 0 - 426 Total Balaries and Admin. Expenses <u>60,407</u> 12,164 72,651		- 0 -	13,886	13,885	
Salaries and Remefits 22,045 9,736 31,703 Compensated Leave Expense -0 - 78 78 Contractual Services 35,407 2,348 37,755 Administrative Services 295 -0 - 296 Rent, Communications and Utilities 1,964 -0 - 1,984 Equipment, Materials and Supplies 329 -0 - 329 Intersponcy Agreements 425 -0 - 425 World Balaries and Admin. Expenses 60,407 12,164 72,651		3,034,271	362,159	3,396,430	
Compensated Leave Expenses- 0 -7878Contractual Services35,4072,34837,755Administrative Services296- 0 -296Rent, Communications and Utilities1,964- 0 -1,984Equipment, Naturials and Supplies329- 0 -329Interagency Agreements426- 0 -426Total Salaries and Admin. Expenses60,40712,16472,651		77.044	A 334		
Administrative Services 296 - 0 - 296 Nent, Communications and Utilities 1,964 - 0 - 1,984 Equipment, Watarials and Supplies 329 - 0 - 329 Interspency Agreements 426 - 0 - 426 Wotal Salarime and Admin. Expanses 60,487 12,164 72,651	Compensated Leave Expense	- 0 -	78	78	
Equipment, Natarials and Supplies 339 - 0 - 329 Interspency Agreements 426 - 0 - 426 Total Salaries didukts Expenses 60,407 12,164 72,551	Administrative Services	296	- 0 -	296	
	Equipment, Materials and Supplies	329	- 9 -	329	

ŝ

teres

ş

an an

ŝ

.

ş

ŝ

.

.

1

Î

WALK I AND IN LONG .

a

.

NUMBER OF STREET

1

.

ŧ

-

Name of the other states o

Į.

i

ì

-

-

i.

1000 1 1000



5 10

ł

1

Ş.

ş

ŝ

ŝ

£

1

ž

1





£

٤.

ç.

ŝ



ĩ

1

ž

ŝ



N

ş

ţ,

ŝ

8

÷

ŝ,

Management is responsible for

• preparing the annual financial statements in conformity with applicable accounting principles,

ł

1

í.

- establishing and maintaining internal controls and systems to provide reasonable assurance that the broad control objectives of the Federal Managers' Financial Integrity Act are met, and
- complying with applicable laws and regulations.

We are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance about whether (1) the Principal Statements are reliable (free of material misstatements and presented fairly in accordance with applicable accounting principles) and (2) relevant internal controls are in place and operating effectively. We are also responsible for testing compliance with significant provisions of selected laws and regulations and for performing limited procedures with respect to certain other information appearing in these annual financial statements.

In order to fulfill these responsibilities, we

- examined, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the Principal Statements;
- assessed the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management;
- evaluated the overall presentation of the Principal Statements;
- evaluated and tested relevant internal controls which encompassed financial reporting, cash receipts, cash disbursements, compliance, and budget;
- tested compliance with significant provisions of the following laws and regulations:
 - Part B of Title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended (20 U.S.C. 1071-1087-2),
 - Federal Credit Reform Act of 1990 (Public Law 101-508),
 - Chief Financial Officers Act of 1990 (Public Law 101-576),
 - Federal Managers' Financial Integrity Act of 1982 (Public Law 97-255),
 - 34 Code of Federal Regulations, Part 682, and
 - reviewed Education's compliance with:
 - OMB Bulletin 94-01, "Form and Content of Agency Financial Statements," and
 - OMB Bulletin 93-18 "Audited Financial Statements."

We did not evaluate all internal controls relevant to operating objectives as broadly defined by FMFIA, such as those controls relevant to preparing statistical reports and ensuring efficient operations. We limited our work to accounting and other controls necessary to achieve the objectives outlined in our opinion on internal controls.

i

ŝ,

i

ţ.

Except for the limitations on the scope of our work in testing the liabilities for loan guarantees, our work was done in accordance with generally accepted government auditing standards and OMB Bulletin 93-06, "Audit Requirements for Federal Financial Statements."

While we examined guaranty agency records in preparation for this report, we did not focus on Education's use of guaranty agency data in calculating school default rates. Hence, this report does not address the Department's procedures for determination of school default rates or for considering requests from educational institutions for recalculation of those default rates. We have not examined this process, and therefore express no opinion as to its efficacy.

The Department of Education's Under Secretary, Assistant Secretary for Postsecondary Education, and Chief Financial Officer provided comments on a draft of this report. These comments are discussed in the "Agency Comments and Our Evaluation" section of the opinion letter and are reprinted in appendix III. We have also incorporated agency views where appropriate.

Status of Fiscal Year 1992 Financial Audit Recommendations

We determined the status of the following recommendations based on our audit work at Education during fiscal year 1993 and on our discussions with Education officials. However, we have not fully assessed the appropriateness or effectiveness of all of the responses identified in the table below.

Report/Recommendations	Action complete	Action in progress	Action planned	No specific action planned
Financial Audit: Guaranteed Student Loan Program's Internal Controls and Structure Need Improvement (GAO/AFMD-93-20, March 16, 1993)				
The Congress amend the Higher Education Act to require that originating lenders pay loan origination fees even if the loan is subsequently sold to another lender.			x	
Require that guaranty agencies and lenders annually provide Education an independent public accountant's positive attestation on the claims for payment submitted to the federal government, and the basis for such attestation, including an opinion on the adequacy of internal controls over such claims.		x		
Fest billings from guaranty agencies and enders as part of its internal reviews.		x		
Require staff to follow up on questioned costs and other amounts owed based on reviews of guaranty agencies and lenders within a designated period of time from the time findings are reported.		X		
Study the feasibility of requiring guaranty agencies to standardize their FFELP loan accounting systems.				χa
Reassess and, if appropriate, adjust the NSLDS implementation date after completion of a detailed system design.		x		
Develop written procedures detailing the methodology to be used to derive the financial statement estimate of loan guarantee subsidies and require that each year's estimate be fully documented and approved by the Department's CFO office.	X			
Establish and maintain subsidiary ledgers for the FFELP.		Х		
Develop procedures to ensure that the general edger is periodically reconciled to subsidiary records maintained by OPE.		X		

ł

Appendix II Status of Fiscal Year 1992 Financial Audit Recommendations

1

.

.

1

į,

\$

5

1

2

Report/Recommendations	Action complete	Action in progress	Action planned	No specific action planned
Establish an acceptance testing group responsible for independently testing FFELP application system changes prior to implementation.	X			
Implement controls described in the Department's ADP Technical Controls Handbook to ensure that all data received from guaranty agencies and lenders is consistent and accurate.	X			
Implement procedures to ensure that internal control reviews and risk assessments of the FFELP information systems are performed periodically as required by OMB Circulars A-123, Internal Control Systems, A-127, Financial Management Systems, and A-130, Management of Federal Information Resources.	x			
Enhance the existing computer disaster recovery plan to include contingency options at Education headquarters and regional offices regarding key original documents.	x			
Require that the security administrator and appropriate supporting technical staff have formal training in the specific operating systems and access control software used by the FFELP contractor.		x		
Develop a comprehensive plan for revising the role of guaranty agencies and the manner in which they are compensated.				Xª
Financial Management: Education's Student Loan Program Controls Over Lenders Need Improvement (GAO/AIMD-93-33, September 9, 1993)				
Develop a comprehensive strategy for determining the accuracy of information reported on lender's quarterly billings.		X		
Monitor and follow up with lenders whose quarterly billings fail to meet Education's internal automated edit checks and reasonability tests		Х		
Develop and implement procedures for converting major automated systems, including a requirement that parallel systems be run for an appropriate period of time, to ensure that new systems are properly processing program data.	X			

^aThe Federal Direct Student Loan Program, which was established in 1993, will revise the role of guaranty agencies since FFELP is expected to significantly phase down over the next 5 years.

Comments From the Department of Education



In response to the comments in the report regarding the Department's organization, we feel strongly that the Department's current structure is essential to our reinvention efforts by pulling together all policy development functions and, at the same time, strengthening the Chief Financial Officer's function. About 98 percent of the Department's \$30 billion annual budget supports educational programs, each with its own legislative statute, involving numerous policy implications within the context of the Federal role in education. Thus, the legislative development and budget processes within the Department are integrally interwoven with policy making. For this reason, Secretary Riley established, with approval from the White House and OMB, an organizational structure that combines budget, legislative development, program evaluations, long-range planning, and policy development into one organizational entity, headed by the Under Secretary, to direct and coordinate these functions within the Department. At the same time, the financial management of the Department has been strengthened by combining the financial management and procurement functions under the CFO. The CFO not only plays a key role along with the Department's Senior Officers in the policy making processes, but also brings a financial management perspective to the Department's overall management and program administration through a variety of mechanisms such as participation in the Executive Management Committee, work groups on the Direct Student Loan and other student financial aid programs, and through follow up of audit findings. In addition, as indicated in the draft report, we believe that the current organizational structure protects financial management from being overshadowed by budget issues. We look forward to the continuing cooperative effort to improve program management and better serve the participants in this program and the taxpayers. If you have any questions, please contact Mitchell L. Laine, Deputy Chief Financial Officer, at 401-0207. Sincerely yours, min. h. t Marshall S. Smith Under Secretary David A. Longanecker Donald R. Assistant Secretary for Chief Financial Officer Postsecondary Education 2

Appendix IV Major Contributors to This Report

U.S. General Accounting Office	
Accounting and Information Management Division, Washington, D.C.	Gloria Jarmon, Senior Assistant Director Louise DiBenedetto, Assistant Director Rosa Ricks, Audit Manager Chinero Thomas, Audit Manager Nilsa Perez, Senior Auditor HeidiKitt Winter, Senior Auditor Paolina Pellegrino, Auditor Christian Stockel, Auditor
Audit Assistance Group	Gloria Hernandez-Saunders, Computer Specialist Lígia Rodriguez, Auditor
Office of the Chief Scientist	Judith Bramlage, Assistant Director Prithviraj Mukherji, Assistant Director
Office of the General Counsel	Helen Desaulniers, Attorney
U.S. Department of Education Office of the Inspector General	
Accounting and Financial Management Staff	Chelton Givens, Director Jack Rouch, Audit Manager Gregory Spencer, Audit Manager Kevin Dugas, Senior Auditor Louella Lontok, Senior Auditor Christina Dyson, Auditor Steven Lachenmyer, Auditor Catherine Shearin, Auditor

į

Information Technology Staff	Sue Taeuber, Chief Patricia Geier, Auditor Gregory Hayenga, Auditor Sue Hermitage, Auditor	
U.S. General Accounting Office Regional Offices		
Atlanta	Shawkat Ahmed, Senior Auditor Deena Devane, Auditor Thanomsri Piyapongroj, Auditor	
Dallas	David Irvin, Senior Auditor Barbara Johnson, Senior Auditor Jimmy Palmer, Jr., Auditor Norman Poage, Auditor Charles Vrabel, Auditor	
Kansas City	Julie Cahalan, Auditor Doris Hynes, Auditor	

ş

i

ş.

arbour.

.

5

ź

L.C.L.

:

\$

-

1

GAO/AIMD-94-131 and ACN 17-30302 FFELP's FY 1993 Financial Audit

ł

¥.

N. CARGO ST.

. . . .

1

Decomposition of the

÷

GAO/AIMD-94-131 and ACN 17-30302 FFELP's FY 1993 Financial Audit

:

÷

1

÷

1.1.1. Exception and

ķ

ł

1.8144

:

÷

ţ

Related GAO and OIG Reports

Financial Audit: Guaranteed Student Loan Program's Internal Controls and Structure Need Improvement (GAO/AFMD-93-20, March 16, 1993)

Financial Audit: Federal Family Education Loan Program's Financial Statements for Fiscal Year 1992 (GAO/AIMD-93-04, June 30, 1993)

Financial Management: Education's Student Loan Program Controls Over Lenders Need Improvement (GAO/AIMD-93-33, September 9, 1993)

Guaranteed Student Loans (GAO/HR-93-2, December 1992)

Education Issues (GAO/OCG-93-18TR, December 1992)

Student Loans: Direct Loans Could Save Billions in First 5 Years With Proper Implementation (GAO/HRD-93-27, November 25, 1992)

Stafford Student Loans: Prompt Payment of Origination Fees Could Reduce Costs (GAO/HRD-92-61, July 24, 1992)

Direct Student Loans: The Department of Education's Implementation of Direct Lending (GAO/T-HRD-93-26, June 10, 1993)

OPE's Lender and Guarantee Agency Oversight Function Should Focus More on Audit Follow-Up (ACN 11-20015, December 1, 1992)

Development and Implementation of the National Student Loan Data System Needs to be Expedited (OIG Semiannual Report-25)

Review of the Performance of the Guaranteed Student Loan Branches (ACN 04-20075, January 28, 1994)

The Secretary's Default Reduction Initiative: An Alternative Approach to Implementing Sanctions (MIR 93-07, September 14, 1993)

Attention Is Needed to Improve the Department's Financial Management Systems (OIG Semiannual Report-24)

Loan Servicers for the Guaranteed Student Loan Programs Need to be Better Controlled to Save ED Millions in GSLP Losses (MIR 92-12, August 19, 1992)

Ordering Information

The first copy of each GAO report and testimony is free. Additional copies are \$2 each. Orders should be sent to the following address, accompanied by a check or money order made out to the Superintendent of Documents, when necessary. Orders for 100 or more copies to be mailed to a single address are discounted 25 percent. No.

÷

ŝ

ŝ

Long of the

-10-404

Part of the second

;

ç

Orders by mail:

U.S. General Accounting Office P.O. Box 6015 Gaithersburg, MD 20884-6015

or visit:

Room 1100 700 4th St. NW (corner of 4th and G Sts. NW) U.S. General Accounting Office Washington, DC

Orders may also be placed by calling (202) 512-6000 or by using fax number (301) 258-4066.

Each day, GAO issues a list of newly available reports and testimony. To receive facsimile copies of the daily list, or any listing from the past 30 days, please call (301) 258-4097 using a touchtone phone. A recorded menu will provide information on how to obtain these listings.



United States General Accounting Office Washington, D.C. 20548-0001

Official Business Penalty for Private Use \$300

Address Correction Requested

Bulk Mail Postage & Fees Paid GAO Permit No. G100 ÷

11.07%

÷,

ş.

Ę

1

-

.

÷

MACCOLOUR DE LA COLORIZA